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Sayreville Public Schools
Vision 2030

P.O.Box 997
Sayreville, New Jersey 08871
Phone: 732-523-3200
Fax: 732-727-5769
Dr. Richard R. Labhe, Superintendent of Schools Mr. Eric Glock-Mollov, Assistant Superintendent
Dr. Marilyn J. Shediack, Assistant Superintendent Ms. Erin Hill, Basiness Administrator/Board Secretary

January 29, 2021

Mr. Anthony Esposito, President and
Members of the Board of Education
Sayreville School District

Middlesex County, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Sayreville Borough School District for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2020 is hereby submitted. This CAFR includes the District's Basic Financial Statements
prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles for governmental entities as
established by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Responsibility for both the accuracy of the
data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the management
of the Sayreville Borough School District. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the data presented in this
repott is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed to present fairly the financial
position and results of operations of the various funds of the District. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the District's financial activities have been included.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections as follows:

-The Introductory Section inciudes this transmittal letter, the District's organizational chart
and a list of principal officials.

-The Financial Section begins with the Independent Audiiors’ Report and includes the
Management's Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements and Notes providing
an overview of the School District's financial position and operating results, and other
schedules providing detailed budgetary information.

-The Statistical Section includes selected financial and demographic information, generally
presented on a muiti-year basis.

-The Single Audit Section - The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1896, P.L. 104 - 156
and the Uniform Guidance and the New Jersey OMB's Circular 15-08, "Single Audit Policy
for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid Payments.” Information related
to this single audit, including the auditor's report on the internal control structure and
compliance with applicable laws and reguiations and findings and recommendations, are
included in the single audit section of this report.

Educating Today's Learaers to Be Tomorrow's Leaders
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1. REPORTING ENTITY AND ITS SERVICES: The Sayreville Borough School District is an independent
reporting entity within the criteria adopted by the GASE as established by NCGA Statement No.3. All funds of
the District are included in this report. The Sayreville Borough School District and all its schools constifute the
District's reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels PRE-K through 12. These
include regular as well as special education for handicapped youngsters. Those students who have a desire
for vocational training attend the Middlesex County Vocational School. The District enroliment for the 2019-
20 fiscal year as reported on the ASSA report in October 2019 was 6,284 students, which is 166 students less
than the previous year's enroliment. The following chart details the changes in the student enroliment of the
District since the 2010 - 2011 school year.

Enroliment Comparison as of October 2019

Fiscal Student Percent
Year Enroliment Change
2010/11 5,994 (0.27%)
2001/M12 6,074 1.34%
201213 6,054 (0.33%)
201314 6,104 0.83%
2014/15 6,120 0.26%
2015/16 6,157 0.60%
2016/17 6,169 0.19%
2017718 6,284 1.86%
2018/19 6,284 0.00%
2019/20 6,118 {2.64%)

2. ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK: The Borough of Sayreville is a community which has
experienced moderate, but increasing growth over the past decade. Building room exists for residential
dwellings, condominiums, commercial structures and light industry. The Borough is convenient to urban
centers, manufacturing areas, several institutes of higher learning and merchandise malls. The community
has benefited from a healthy national economy by maintaining established small businesses and moderate
expansion of commerce.

3. MAJOR INITIATIVES: Technology devices have an important District initiative, especially in response fo
the pandemic. The District was already working toward a 1:1 student to device ratio but with new grant funding
we were able to accompiish that goal. As a result, the District was able to provide remote learning opportunities
when it wasn't possible for students to be in the classroom. Additional technology devices are needed and
being implemented in the 2020-2021 school year including classroom sets that will allow teachers to teach in
their classrooms while students can participate either in-person or remotely. Transportation has created
another challenge that resulted in the District becoming more self-sufficient by purchasing more buses and
using fewer contractors. Finally, the District is addressing facility needs district wide through an ESIP, which
will allow the district to make much needed upgrades without taxpayer impact.

4. INTERNAL ACCOUNTING CONTROLS: Management of the District is responsible for establishing and
maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are protected from
loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of
financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The internal control
structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The
concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) there are limited resources and that the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring that an
adequate internal confrol structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations
related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to periodic evaluation by the District

Educating Today’s Learners to Be Tomorrow’s Leaders
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managemeant. As part of the District's single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy
of the internal structure, including that portion related to federal and state financlal assistance programs, as
well as fo determine that the District has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROLS: in addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary
controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions embodied in
the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipality. Annual appropriated budgets are
adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund and the debt service fund. Amendments to the line
items within these funds are approved by the Superintendent and subsequently ratified by the Board of
Education, in accordance with state statute and Board Policy.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a line item basis.
Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as reappropriations of fund balance in
the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated are reported as reservations of fund balance at
June 30, 2020.

6. ACCOLINTING SYSTEM AND REPORTS: The District's accounting records reflect generally accepted
accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The
accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds which are explained in "Notes io the
Financial Statements,” Note 1.

7. DEBT ADMINISTRATION: Series 2005 bonds were refunded to the series 2013 bonds in the amount of
$30,945,000.00. The remaining principal balance of the 2013 bonds at June 30, 2020 was $24,095,000.00.
Series 2006 bonds were refunded to the series 2016 bonds in the amount of $6,640,000.00. The remaining
principal balance of the 2016 bonds at June 30, 2020 was $4,500,000.00. Series 2007 bonds were refunded
to the series 2017 bonds in the amount of $8,495,000.00. The remaining principal balance of the 2017 bonds
at June 30, 2020 was $5,645,000.00.

8. CASH MANAGEMENT: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute as
detailed in "Notes to the Financial Statements,” Note 2. The District's cash management plan allows it to
deposit public funds in public depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit
Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 and updated in 2009 to protect Governmental
Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed banking institution in New Jersey. The law requires
governmental units to deposit public funds only in public depositories located in New Jersey where the funds
are secured in accordance with the Act.

9. RISK MANAGEMENT: The Board of Education carries various forms of insurance, including but not limited
to general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on property
damage and contents and fidelity bonds.

10. OTHER INFORMATION: Independent Audit - State statutes require an annual audit by independent
certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Suplee Clooney &
Company was selected by the Board of Education. In addition to meeting the requirements set forth in state
statutes, the audit also was designed to meset the requirements of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1998
and the related Uniform Guidance and state Treasury Circular 15-08 OMB. The auditor's report on the basic
financial statements and combining individual fund statements and schedules is included in the financial
section of this report. The auditor's reports related specifically to the single audit are included in the single
audit section of this report.

Respectfully submitted,

e e %ﬁf
Dr. Riché% Erin Hill

Superintendent of Schools School Business Administrator/Board Secretary

Educating Today's Learacrs to Be Tomorrow’s Leaders
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SUPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-789-9360 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@senco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Sayreville Borough School District
County of Middlesex

Sayreville, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Sayreville Borough School District, County of Middlesex, New Jersey as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2020, and the reiated notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the
District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, audit requirements prescribed by the Division
of Finance, Depariment of Education, State of New Jersey, the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and State of New Jersey OMB Circular
15-08 “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid." Those
standards and provisions require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.



SurPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant
to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Sayreville Borough School District, County
of Middiesex, New Jersey as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and budgetary comparison information in Exhibit C-1 through
C-3, the schedules related to accounting and reporting for pensions in Exhibit L-1 through L-4 and the
schedules related to the accounting and reporting for postretirement benefits other than pensions
(OPEB) in Exhibit M-1 and M-2 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for piacing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Sayrevile Borough School District's basic financial statements. The
accompanying supplementary information schedules such as the combining and individual fund
financial statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial
Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance, New Jersey’s
OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State
Aid,” and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance, are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying supplementary information, data and schedules such as the combining
and individual fund financial statements and the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
State Financial Assistance, as listed in the table of contents, as required by the Uniform Guidance,
New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08, “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants
and State Aid,” and the State of New Jersey, Department of Education, Division of Finance is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the accompanying supplementary
information, data and schedules is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic
financial statements as a whole.

The other information, such as the introductory and statistical sections, has not been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we
do not express on opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
January 29, 2021 on our consideration of the Sayreville Borough School District's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal controt over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Sayreville Borough School District's internal control over financial

reporting and compliance.
CERTiFIED; PEBLiC ACCOUNTAN1‘S

PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948

January 29, 2021
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SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SAYREVILLE, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT"S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of Sayrevilie Borough Schoo! District’s financial performance provides an overall review of
the School District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. The intent of this discussion and analysis
is to look at the School District’s financial performance as a whole; readers should also review the basic financial
statements and notes to enhance their understanding of the School District’s financial performance.

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is an element of Required Supplementary Information specified in
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board’s (GASB) Statement No. 34 — Basic Financial Statements and
Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments issued in June 1999, Certain comparative
information between the current year (2019-2020) and the prior year (2018-2019) is required to be presented in the
MD&A.

Financial Highlights
Key financial highlights for 2020 are as follows:

In the District Wide Statements:

® In total, net position decreased ($134,611) which represents a 0.58 percent decrease from 2019.

¥ General revenues accounted for $93,786,194 in revenue or 75 percent of all revenues. Program specific
revenues in the form of charges for services and granfs and contributions accounted for $30,875,195 or 25
percent of total revenues of $124,661,389.

€ The School District had $124,796,000 in expenses; $30,875,195 of these expenses were offset by program
specific charges for services, grants or contributions; $93,786,194 of these expenses were offset by General
revenues.

In the Fund Financial Statements:

4 The General Fund had $107,763,083 in revenues and $107,904,642 in expenditures.
€ Overall the General Fund's fund balance increased $1,317,344 from 2019.

Using this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR)

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. These statements are
organized so the reader can understand Sayreville Borough School District as a financial whole, an entire operating
entity. The statements then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specific financial activities.

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities provide information about the activities of the whole School
district, presenting both an aggregate view of the School district’s finances and a longer-term view of those finances.
Fund financial statements provide the next level of detail. For governmental funds, these statements tell how services
were financed in the short-term as well as what remains for future spending. The fund financial statements also look at
the School district’s most significant funds with all other non-major funds presented in total in one column. In the case of
Sayreville Borough School District, the General Fund is by far the most significant fund.

12



SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SAYREVILLE, NEW JERSEY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
UNAUDITED (Continued)

Reporting the School District as a Whole

Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities

While this documnent contains most of the funds used by the School District to provide programs and activities, the view
of the School district as a whole looks at all financial transactions and asks the question, “How did we do financially
during 20207” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities answers this question. These statements
include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most private-
sector businesses. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year’s revenues and expenses regardless
of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the School District’s net position and changes in those activities. This change in net position
is important because it tells the reader that, for the school district as a whole, the financial position of the School district
has improved or diminished. The causes of this change may be the result of many factors, some financial and seme not.
Non-financial factors include the School District’s property fax base, current laws in New Jersey restricting revenue
growth, and other factors.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, the School District is divided into two distinct kinds of
activities:

4 Governmental activities — All of the School District’s programs and services are reported here
including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities, pupil
transportation and extracurricular activities,

® Business-Type Activity — This service is provided on a charge for goods or services basis to recover
all the expenses of the goods or services provided. The Food Service and Community School
enterprise funds are reported as business activities.

Reporting the School District’s Most Significant Funds

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial reports provide detailed information about the School District’s funds. The School District uses many
funds 1o account for a multitude of financial transactions. The School District’s governmental funds are the General
Fund, Special Revenue Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Debt Service Fund.

Governmental Funds

The School District’s activities are reported in governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of
those funds and the balances lefi at year-end available for spending in the firture years. These funds are reported using an
accounting method called modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash, The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the School
district’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps the
reader determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
educational programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities} and governmenta! funds is reconciled in the financial statements.

Enterprise Fund
The enterprise fund uses the same basis of accounting as business-type activities.
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FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
UNAUDITED (Continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the District-wide
and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the fund
financial statements.

The School District as a Whele

Recall that the Statement of Net Position provides the perspective of the School District as a whole. Net position may
serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The District’s financial position is the product
of several financial transactions including the net results of activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the
acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets.

Table 1 provides a summary of the School District’s net position for 2020. In accordance with GASB Statement
34, net position comparisons to fiscal year 2019 are presented.

TABLE 1
NET POSITION
FY 2020 FY 2019
Governmental Business Governmental Business
Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Current & Other Assets $15,102,084 $1,110,719 $16,212,803 $11,652,514  $1,697,401 $13,349,916
Capital Assets 78,123,089 7.715 78,130,804 79,215 451 6,069 79,221,520

TOTAL ASSETS 93,226,173 1,118,434 94,343,608 90,867 966 1,703,470 92,571,436
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS
OF RESOQURCES:
Pension Related 3,644,813 3,644,813 5,380,264 5,380,264

TCOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 3,644,813 3,644,813 5,380,264 5,380,254
LIABILITIES
Long-Term Liabilities 56,222,981 34,375 56,257,356 59,183,822 30,692 59,214,514
Other Liabilities 9,746,963 108,796 9,945 759 6,762 802 311,162 7,073,964

TOTAL LIABILITIES 65,969,944 233,11 66,203,115 65,946,624 341,854 66,288,478
DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES:
Pension Related 8,740,886 8,740,885 8,484,125 8,484,125
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 41,892,078 7.715 41,899,733 40,485,242 6,069 40,491,311
Restricted 8,499,509 8,499,509 7,627,357 7,627,357
Unrestricted:

Pension related (deficit) (25,827 ,467) (25,827 ,467) (26,440,960) {26,440,960)

Other {deficif) {2,404,963) 877 548 (1,527 ,415) 145,842 1,355,548 1,501,389

TOTAL NET POSITION $22,159,156 $885,263 $23,044,419 $21,817,481  $1361.617  $23,179,097

The District’s combined net position were $23,044,419 on June 30, 2020,
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Table 2 shows changes in net assets for fiscal year 2020. In accordance with GASB Statement 34, revenue and expense
comparisons to fiscal year 2019 is presented to comparatively analyze district-wide data.

Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Operating Grants & Contributions
Charges for Services
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Grants (includes State Aid)
and Entitlements
Other Revenues
Transfers
Total Revenues

Expenses:
Instruction
Pupils and Instructional Staff
General & School Adm, Central

Serv & Adm Technology
Maintenance
Transportation
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Other
Business-Type

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position
Net Position July 1,

Net Position June 30,

TABLE 2
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FY 2020 FY 2019
Governmental Business Governmental Business

Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
$28,897,236 $1,114,301 $30,011,538 $30,200,974  $1,541,155  $31,751,129
863,658 863,658 1,734,766 1,734,766
66,687,576 66,687,576 65,357,364 65,357 364
26,258,480 26,258,480 23,838,347 23,838,347
475,508 475,508 1,108,286 1,106,286

659,631 (285,000) 364,631 210,000 {210,000}

122,978,431 1,682,859 124,661,389 120,721,971 3,065,921 123,787,803
81,365,348 81,365,348 79,982,638 79,982,638
16,118,682 16,118,682 14,489,561 14,489,561

9,427,755 0,427,755 9,197,407 9,197,407
6,816,636 6,816,636 5,960,438 5,960,438
5,935,678 5,935,678 6,180,005 6,180,005
2,443,022 2,443,022 1,614,422 1,514,422
526,565 529,565 369,009 369,009
2,189,312 2,169,312 2,632,561 2,632,561

122,636,688 2,159,312 124,796,000 117,693,481 2,632,561 120,326,042
341,743 {476,354) {134,611) 3,028,480 433,361 3,461,850
21,817 413 1,361,617 23,179,030 18,788,924 028 256 19,717,180
$22,159,156 $885,263 $23,044,419 $21,817,413 $1,361,617 $23,179,030

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants offsetting those

services.

Both revenues and expenses increased mainly as a result of the district recognizing a larger on-behalf postretirement
contributions as a both revenue and as an expense based upon the State’s Actuarial report.
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Governmental Activities
As shown in Table 2 the District’s total revenue from Governmental Activities was $122,978,431. Property
taxes made up 54 percent of these revenues. Federal, state, and local grants and state aid accounted for 46

percent of revenue.

Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2020 (District-Wide Basis)

M Property Taxes for General Purposes

45% | N Praperty Taxes for Debt Service

51%
[ State Akl and Federal/State Grants

[Jother

Also on Table 2, the total cost of Governmental programs and services was $122,636,688. Direct instruction comprises
68 percent of District expenses.

Expenses for Fiscal Year 2020 (District-Wide Basis)

M Instruction Related

B Maintenance &
Operations

0 Administration

0O Student Support Services

M Transportation

@ Other
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Business-Type Activities

Revenues for the District’s business-type activities (food service and community school program) were comprised of
charges for services and federal and state reimbursements.

€ Business Type expenses exceeded revenues by $476,354.

¢ Charges for services represent $863,658 of revenue. This represents amounts paid by patrons for the various
program services,

#® Federal and state reimbursement for meals, including payments for free and reduced lunches, and donated
commodities was $1,114,301.

Governmental Activities

The Statement of Activities shows the cost of program services and the charges for services and grants offsetting those
services. Table 3 shows the total cost of services and the net cost of services. The total costs include compensating
absences, unallocated benefits, and depreciation and is reduced by grants and specific state aid. The net cost shows the
financial burden that was placed on the District’s taxpayers by each of these functions. In accordance with GASB
Statement 34, a comparison to fiscal year 2020 is presented.

Instruction expenses include the activities involving the interaction between teachers and students in a school
classroom, another location such as a home or hospital, and in other learning situations such as those involving co-
curricular activities.

Support Services includes expenses for pupils and instructional staff providing administrative, technical, and
logistical support to facilitate and enhance instruction. This area includes Attendance and Social Work Services, Health
Services, Child Study Team Services, Curriculum Development, Staff Training, and School Library Services.

TABLE 3
NET COST OF SERVICES
Total Cost of Total Cost of Net Cost of Net Cost of

Services Services Services Services

FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2019
Instruction $81,365,348 $79,982,638 $60,028,315 $56,603,355
Pupils and Instructional Staff 16,118,682 14,489 581 13,563,231 13,173,329

Gen. & School Adm, Central

Serv & Adm Technology 9,427,755 9,197,407 6,836,926 6,289,602
Maintenance 6,816,636 5,860,438 6,791,702 5,908,571
Transporation 5,935,678 6,180,005 3,572,110 3,653,444
Interest on Long-Term Debt 2,443,022 1,514,422 2417603 1,486,198
Business-Type 2,159,312 2,632,561 181,354 (643,361)
Other 529,565 369,008 529,565 369,009
Total Expenses $124.796,000 $120,326,042 $93,920,805 $86,840,147

School Administration, General Administration, Central Service & Administrative Technology
includes expenses associated with administrative responsibility for the schools: Supervision of the schools, evaluation of
school staff members, fiscal services, human resources, strategic planning, purchasing, payroll, and management of the
district’s information technology system.

Operation and Maintenance of Facilities involve keeping the physical plant open, comfortable, and safe for
use, and keeping the grounds, buildings, and equipment in effective working condition.
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Pupil Transportation includes activities involved with the conveyance of students to and from school, as well as
to and from school activities, as provided by Federal and State law.

Interest on debt involves the transactions associated with the payment of interest and other related charges to debt of
the School District.

Business Type Activities involves the transactions associated with the operation of the Food Service and
Community School program.

Other includes charter school contributions and unallocated depreciation.

The School District’s Funds

All governmental funds (i.e., general fund, special revenue fund, capital projects fund and debt service fund presented in
the fund-based statements) are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Total revenues and other
financing sources amounted to $117,732,009 and expenditures were $116,694,256. The net change in fund balance for
the year was $1,037,753.

As demonstrated by the various statements and schedules included in the financial section of this report, the District
continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management. The following schedules present a summary of the
revenues of the general fund, special revenue fund and debt service fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the
amount and percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year revenues.

REVENUES (FUND-BASED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS):

Increase/Decrease Percentage
Amount Percentage from 2019 Change
Local Sources $67,528,945 58.08% $1.049,6567 1.58%
State Sources 46,158,674 39.70% 6,169,341 15.43%
Federal Sources 2,585,486 2.22% (86,958) (3.25%)
$116,273,106 100.00% $7,131,950 6.53%

The increase in State Sources is due largely to an increase in the States contribution for On-behalf
pensions and post-retirement contributions, along with an increase in State Aid.
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The following schedule represents a summary of general fund, special revenue fund, and debt service fund expenditures
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, and the percentage of increases and decreases in relation to prior year amounts.

EXPENDITURES {FUND BASED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS)

increase/(Decrease) Percentage
Amount Percentage from 2019 Change

Current Expense:
Instruction $43,976,409 37.69% $1,237,537 2.90%
Undistributed 65,566,774 56.19% 5,815,748 9.73%
Capital Outlay 3,539,910 3.03% {540,950) (13.268%)

Debt Setvice:

Principal 2,440,000 2.09% 90,000 3.83%
interest 1,171,162 1.00% (74,271 (5.96%)
Total $116,694,256 100.00% $6,528,057 5.93%

General Fund Budgeting Highlights

The School District’s budget is prepared according to New Jersey law, and is based on accounting for certain
transactions on 2 basis of cash receipts, disbursements, and encumbrances. The most significant budgeted fund is the
General Fund.

Over the course of the year, the District revised the annual operating budget as needed. Revisions in the budget were
made to recognize revenues that were not anticipated and to prevent over-expenditures in specific line item accounts.
Several of these revisions bear notation:

€ The District received $913,562 in extraordinary aid, which is state aid for special education students whose
individual program cost exceeds program guidelines; this was $263,562 more than anticipated. There was no guarantee
from the Department of Education that these funds would be available.

4 TPAF, which is the state’s contribution to the pension fund, is neither a revenue item nor an expenditure item to the
District but is required to be reflected in the financial statements, This number is reflective of the amount of money the
New Jersey Department of Education pays on-behalf of certified staff for pension and FICA purposes. Salaries of regular
instruction continue to increase in proportion with negotiated contracts.

# The District’s philosophy is to include special education students in regular academic classes whenever possible but
with additional services. Students who may have been originally scheduled for Resource Room classes were scheduled
for Inclusion classes. This necessitates the cost for additional instructional aides and teachers to accommodate resource
students.
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Capital Assets

At the end of the fiscal year 2020, the School District had $78,123,089 invested in land, building, furniture and equipment,
and vehicles, Table 4 shows fiscal year 2020 balances compared to 2019,

Table 4
Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation) at June 30

2020 2019
Land $6,767,549 $6,767,549
Construction in Progress 22,755 22,755
Site Improvements 925,939 1,031,387
Buildings 68,600,424 69,800,317
Equipment 1,806,422 1,593,443
$78,123,089 $79,215,451

Overall capital assets decreased ($1,092,362) from fiscal year 2019 to fiscal year 2020. The decrease in capital assets is
due primarily to the increase in depreciation expense for buildings and building improvements in FY2020. For more
detailed information, please refer to the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Debt Administration

At June 30, 2020, the School District had $59,639,662 of outstanding debt, Of this amount, $3,904,241 is for
compensated absences; $1,991,012 for various capital leases; $34,240,000 of serial bonds and $19,538,784 in net
pension liability.

Table 5 illustrates the balances of the District’s various bonds issues outstanding at June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019.

Table 5
OQuistanding Debf at June 30,

2020 2019
2012 Refunding Bonds $24,095,000 $25,240,000
2016 Refunding Bonds 4,500,000 5,045,000
2017 Refunding Bonds 5,645,000 6,395,000
Total $34,240,000 $36,680,000
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For the Future

The Sayreville Borough School District is in good financial condition presently. The School District is proud of'its
community support of the public schools. The state has slightly increased state aid in each of the last two school years,
the district was anticipating a substantial increase in the 2020-2021 school year only for the majority of those additional
funds to be taken back due to the pandemic. There is uncertainty regarding the method and amount of funding the states
portion of educational aid in the future, particularly in light of the fiscal crisis that has resulted from the pandemic. The
Board and Administration continue to find creative means to fill the gap between funding, and the cost to provide
education to Sayreville’s students. The School District has numerous facility needs that are being addressed through
Reserve Funds and an ESIP,

In addition, the School District’s system for financial planning, budgeting and internal financial controls are well
regarded. The Schoo! District plans to continue its sound fiscal management to meet the challenge of the future. In
conclusion, the Sayreville Borough School District has committed itself to financial excellence for many years.

Contacting the School District’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, investors, and creditors with a general overview of
the School District’s finances and to show the School District’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have
questions about this report or need additional information, contact Erin Hill, Business Administrator/Board Secretary at
Sayreville Borough Board of Education, 150 Lincoln Street, South Amboy, NJ 08879. Please visit our website at
www.Sayrevillek12.net.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements provide a financial overview of
the District's operations. These financial statements present the financial position and
operating results of all funds as of June 30, 2020.
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DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of net position and the statement of activities display information about the District. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall district, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the double counting
of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the District.
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ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net

inventory

Restricted assels:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets:
t.and and Construction in progress

Cther Capital Assets net of depreciation

Total Assets

SAYREVILLE BORQUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT "A-1"

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Pension Related

LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
interfunds payable
Payable to state government
Unearned revenue
Accrued Interest Payable
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year:
Bonds and capilal leases payable
Due beyond one year:
Net Pension Liability
Compensated absences payable
Bonds and capital leases payabie
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:

Pension Related
NET POSITION:

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:

Capital projects fund

Other purposes
Unrestricted (deficit)

Totat net position

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL
$6,715,132.27 $852,759.56 $7,567,891.83
2,622,708.87 176,436.76 2,799,145.63
81,522.94 81,522.94
5,764,242.72 5,764,242.72
6,790,304.38 6,760,304.38
71,332,785.00 7,715.00 71,340,500.00
93,225,173.24 1,118,434.26 94,343,607.50
3,644,813.00 3,644,813.00
5,580,566.60 2,094.45 5,592 661.05
116,446.13 116,446.13
20,498.56 29,498.56
234,860.95 80,265.77 315,116.72
475,356.26 475,356.26
3,416,680.20 3,416,680.20
19,538,784.00 19,538,784.00
3,869,866.02 34,375.00 3,904,241.02
32,814,331.41 32,814,331.41
65,969,944.00 23317135 66,203,115.35
8,740,886.00 8,740,886.00
41,892,077.77 7.715.00 41,899,792.77
4,524,109.00 4,524,109.00
3,975,399.80 3,975,399.80
(28,232,430.33) 877,547.91 {27 354,882.42)
$22,159,156.24 $885,262.91 $23,044,419.15
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MAJOR FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Individual Fund financial statements and schedules present more detailed information for the individual
fund in a format that segregates information by fund type.

26




EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #1
AYREVILEE BOROUGH DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEE]
GOVERNM) ND:
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
SPECIAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUNDS
ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents - 12,331,585.80 % 147,766.98 § 223 % 12,479,374.99
Accounts Receivable:
Federal 464,112.02 464,112.02
State 1,134,307.38 9,850.00 1,144,157.38
Other 91,066.92 600.24 91,657.18
Due from other funds 190,438,112 1980,438.12
Total assels $ 13,747,388.22 § 622,34022 § 223 % 14,369,730.67
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 382283136 § 575,125.24 B $ 4,397 956.60
Due to other funds 71,650.00 71,650.00
Payable to state government 29,498.56 29,498.56
Unearned revenue 8,193.12 225,667.83 234,860.95
Total habilities 3,832 024.48 901,941.63 4,733,066.11
Fund balances:
Restricted:
Capital reserve 4,524,109.00 4,524,109.00
Maintenance reserve 980,690.72 080,690.72
Emergency reserve 259,443.00 259,443.00
Excess Surplus designated for ‘
subsequent years expenditures 1,174,076.00 1,174,676.00
Excess surplus - Current Year 1,561,190.08 1,561,190.08
Debt service fund 2.23 2.23
Assigned:
Encumbrances 976,604.94 976,604.94
Designated for subsequent years expenditures 439,250,00 439,250.00
Unassigned
Special revenue fund (deficit) (279,592.41) {279,592.41)
Total fund balances 9,915,363.74 {279,592.41} 2.23 9,635,773.55
Total iiabiiities and fund balances $ 13,747,388.22 % 622,349.22 $ 223 % 14,369,730.67

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT "B-1"

SHEET #2
SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Total Fund Balances (Brought Forward) $ 9,635,773.56

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement
of Net Position {A-1) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental aclivities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Cost of Assets 5 135,567,154.38
Accumulated Depreciation (57,444,065.00)

78,123,089.38

The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of
dental and prescription benefils to district employees. Employee
henefits are governmental activities. This amount is the
unrestricted net position in the Internal Service Fund. 803,994.19

Long term liahilities, including bonds payable, and other related
amounts that are not due and payable in the current pericd
and therefore are not reported as Habilities in the funds.

Net Pension Liability (19,538,784.00)
Compensated Absences {3,869,866.02)
Bonds Payable:

Qutstanding at June 30, 2020 {34,240,000.00)

Capital Leases:
Qutstanding at June 30, 2020 (1,991,011.61)

(59,639,661.63)
Deferred Qutflows and Inflows of resources are applicable
to future periods and therefore are not reported in the funds.
Pensions:
Deferred Outflows
Pension related 3,644,813.00

Deferred Inflows:
Pension related (8,740,886.00)

Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds,

Accounts Payable - Pension Related {1,192,610.00)
Accrued Interest Payable {475,356.26}
(1,667,966.26)
Net Position of Governmental Activities 3 22,159,156.24

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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STAT

REVENUES:
Local sources:
Local tax levy

Transportation fees from other LEAs

Rents and Royalties

Interest on Emergency Reserve
Interest on Maintenance Reserve
Interest on Capital Reserve
Miscellaneous

Total - local sources

State sources
Federal sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current expense;
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Other instruction
Support sefvices:
Tuition

Student & instruction related services

General administrative sarvices
School administrative services

Central service/Adimin information techaoiogy

Plant operations and maintenance

Pupil transportation

Unallocated benefits

Transfer to Charter Schools
Special schools
Debt Service:

Principal

Interest

Capital outtay

Total experditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) axpenditures

Gther financing sources {uses):
Transfers infout
Capital leases (non-budgeted)
Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balances

fFund balances, July 1, 2019

Fund batances, June 38, 2020 {deficit)

ENT OF RE

EXHIBIT "B-2"

SAYREVILLE BORO AR DUCATIO
PENDITURES A ANGES IN FIJND BALANCE
VERNMENTAL
THE FISCAL YEAR ENDE E 30,202
SPECIAL CAPITAL DEBT TOTAL
GENERAL REVENUE PROJECTS SERVICE GOVERNMENTAL
FUND FUND FUND FUND FUNDS

$ 6315584000 % $ $ 353172700 $  66,687,576.00
5,640.00 5.640.00
133,843.42 133,643.42
3,243.93 3,243.93
12,377.08 12,377.08
18,802.51 18,802.51
301,801.18 1,230.80 303,031.98
£3,631,357.12 1,230.80 3,531,727.00 67,164,314.92
43,576,202 40 2,502,045.6% 79,436.00 46,158,674.09
180,803.06 2,394,683.02 2,585,486.08
107,398, 452,58 4,898 859.51 3,611,163.00 115,908,475.00
27,479,930,26 27.479,930.26
10,218,722.54 2,926,585.77 13,145,308.31
3,264,752.46 3,264,752.46
3,037,173.33 3,037,173.33
9,388,514.69 2,251,866,15 11,640,380.84
1,708,739.07 1,706,738.07
3,106,778.03 3,108,778.03
2,227,616.08 2,227,616.08
7,548,753.95 7,548,753.95
5,518,767.89 5518,767.89
50,251,000.13 30,251,000.13
529 565.00 529,565.00
86,418.20 86,418.20
2,440,000.00 2,440,000.00
1,171,162.20 1,171,162.20
3,539,910.10 3,536,910.10
107,904,841.73 5,178,451.92 3,611,162.20 116,694,255.85
{508,189.15) (279,592.41) 0.80 (765,780.76)
659,630.52 659,630.52
1,163,903.01 1,163,008.01
1,823,533.53 1,823,533.53
1,317,344.38 (279,592.41) 0.80 1,037,752.77
8,598,019.36 1.43 8,508,020.79
$ 991536374 5 (270,59241) § -0- 3 225 § 0,635,773.56

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXHIBIT "B-3"

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TG THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Total net change in fund balances - governmential funds (from B-2)

Amounts reperied for governmental activities in the statement of activities (A-2) are
different because:

Capitai outlays are reporied in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
fives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the period.

Depreciation expense
Capital outlays
Less: Capital Outlays not capitalized

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is not
reporied in the statement of activities.

Bonds Paid by Budget

Proceeds from debt issues are a financing source in goveramental funds, They are
not revenue in the statement of activities; issuing debt increases long-term liabilities
in the statement of net position.

Capital lease proceeds - Gurrent Year

The Internal Service Fund is used by management {0 charge the costs of providing dentai and
prescription: insurance to district employees. This amount is the change in net position for the Internal
Service Fund, exclusive of any gain{loss} on disposal of Internat Service Fund capilai assets.

Repayment of long-term debt is an expendituse in the governmental fusids, bul the
repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position and is no!
reported in the statement of activities.

Payment of capital lease payable

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardiess of when
due. in governmental funds, interest is reporied when due. The accrued interest is an
addition in the reconciliation.

District pension contributions are reported as expendilures in the governmental funds when made.
However, they are reported as deferred cutflows of resources in the Statement of Net Position because
the reporied net pension liability is measured a year before the District's report date. Pension expense,
which is the change in the net pension liability adiusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, is reported in the Statement of Activities.

District pension conlributions
Less: Pension expense

In the statement of activities, certain expenses, e.g., compensated absences {vacations)
are measured by the amounis earned during the year. In govermnmental funds, however,
expenditures for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used {paid).
When the earned amount exceeds the paid amount, the difference is a reduction in the
reconciliation {-). When the paid amount exceeds the earned amount the difference is an
addition 1o the reconciliation ().

Change in net position of governmental activities {(A-2)

$1,037.752.77

{3,327,497.00)
$3,539,910.10
{1,304,775.10)
2,235,135.00
2.440,000.00

(1,163.9803.01)

(329.302.44)
1,223.100.92
32,914.84
$1,054,783.00
{441,290.00)
613,493.00

(2.419,951.02)

$341,743.06

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS:
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agents
Accounts receivable:
State
Federal
Other
Inventories

Total current assets
Noncurent assets:
Furniture, machinery and equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Total noncurrent assets
Total assels
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
Interfunds payable
Unearned revenue
Accounts payable
Accrued liabitities

Total current liabikities

Noncurrent liabiltias:
Compensated Absences

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capitai assets

Unrestricted

Total net position

AYREVILLE BOROU

HOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
EQR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT "B-4"

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND ACTIVITIES -
FOOD COMMUNITY INTERNAL
SERVICE SCHOOL JOTAL SERVICE FUND
$459,875.06 $392,884.50 $852,759.56 $620,221.84
213,116.05
2,056.50 2,056.50
136,568.68 136,508.68
28,015.58 9,766.00 37,781.58 470,654.54
81,522.94 81,522.04
708,068.76 402,650.50 1,110,718.26 1,303,882.43
568,970.00 568,970.00
{661,255.00) (561,255.00}
7,715.00 7,716.00
715,783.76 402,650.50 1.118,434.26 1,303,992.43
116,446.13 116,446.13 3.668.89
80,2585.77 80,255.77
2,094.45 2,094.45 345,929.35
150,400.00
198,796.35 198,796.35 499,998.24
34,375.00 34,375.00
34,375.00 34,375.00
233,171.35 233,171.35 459,998.24
7,715.00 7.715.00
474.887.41 402,650.50 877.547.91 803,994.19
$482,612.41 $402,650.50 $885,262,91 $803,994.19

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SAYREVILLE BOROQUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

OPERATING REVENUES:

Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimbursable programs
Daily sales - non-reimbursable programs
Special Functions
Tuition - individuals

Services provided to other funds

Tolal operating revenues

EXHIBIT "B-5"

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Cost of sales - reimbursable
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable

Salaries

Employee benefils
Other purchase services
Supplies and materiais

Depreciation
Miscellaneous

Tolal operating expenses

Operating income {loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

State Sources

State School Lunch Program

Federal Sources:

National Schoot Lunch Program
School Breakfast Program
National food distribution commodities

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under} expenditures

Other financing sources/{uses).
Cancelled accounts receivable

Transfer of funds

Total other financing {uses)
Net change in fund balances
Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND ACTIVITIES -
FOOD SERVICE COMMUNITY INTERNAL
SCHOOL NUTRITION SCHOOL TOTAL SERVICE FUND
$557,139.90 $557,139.90
234,352.04 234,352 .04
2,249.72 2,249.72
$69,916.00 69,916.00
$3,703,190.85
793,741.66 69,816.00 863,657.66 3,703,190.85
812,053 .44 812,053.44
57.512.74 57,512.74
957 676.61 53,765.52 1,011,442.13
166,251.92 166,251.92 3,675.832.77
29,004.58 29,004.58
£8,043.01 1,288.29 69,331.30
7,295.00 7,295.00
5.215.38 1,206.00 6,421.38
2,103,052.68 56,259.81 2,159,312.49 3.675,832.77
(1,309,311.02) 13,656.19 {1,295,654.83) 27,358.08
19,126.63 19,126.63
757,364.51 757.364.51
193,992.11 193,992.11
143,817.86 143,817.86
1,114,301.11 1,114,301.11
(195,009.91) 13,656.19 {181,353.72) 27,358.08
(4.115.05)
(295,000.00) (295,000.00) (352,545.47)
(295,000.00) (295,000.00) (356,660.52)
(195,609.91) (281,343.81) (476,353.72) (329,302.44)
677,622.32 683,994.31 1,361,616.63 1,133,296.63
$482,612.41 $402,650.50 $885,262.91 $803,994.19

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEME!

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FORT

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to employeas
Payments o employee benefits
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by {used for) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State sources

Federal sources

Operaling subsidies and transfers fo other funds

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital asseis

Net cash provided by (used for} capital and related
financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2019

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2020

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operaling activities

Operating income {ioss)

Adjustments fo reconciling operating income (loss) to
net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Federal commodities

Change in assefs and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in other accounts receivable
Increase {decrease) in unearned revenug
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
{increase) decrease in inventories

Net cash provided by {used for) operating activities

£ CASH FLOWS

EXHIBIT "B-8"

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
GOVERNMENTAL
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND ACTIVITIES -
FOOD COMMUNITY INTERNAL
SERVICE SCHOOL TOTAL SERVICE FUND
$805,462.22 ($1,785.50) $803,676.72 $3,793,980.85
{957 ,676.61) (53,765.52) (1,011,442.13)
(45,325.48) (49,325.48) (3,527,679.43)
{1,050,681.21) (6,807.29) {1,057,488.50)
{1,252,221.08) (62,358.31) {1.314,579.39) 266,301.42
19,356.43 19,356.43
919,600.66 919,600.66
{295,006.00) {295,000.00) {(348,876.58)
938,957.09 {295,000.00) 543,957.09 {348,876.58)
{8,941.00} (8,941.00)
(8,941.00) {8,941.00}
(322,204.99) (357,358.31) (679,563.30) (82,575.16)
782,080.05 750,242.81 1,532,322.86 915,913.05
$459,8675.06 $392,884.50 $852,759.56 $633,337.89
{$1.309,311.02} $13,656.19 {$1,295,654.83) $27,358.08
7,2495.00 7,295.00
143,817.86 143,817.86
{16,087.52) 519.00 {15,568.52) 90,790.00
43,086.36 {72,220.50) (29,134.14)
(75,235.19) (4.313.00) (79,548.19) 148,153.34
{45,786.57) (45,786.57)
57,089.94 (76,014.50) {18,924.56) 238,943.34
{$1,252,221.08) (62,358.31) {$1,314,579.39) $266,301.42

The accompanying Notes fo the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Iinterfund Receivabie

Total assets

LIABILITIES:
Payroll deductions and withholdings
Due to student groups

Total liabilities

NET POSITION:

Held in trust for unemployment
claims and other purposes

Held in trust for awards and
cther purposes

Total net position

SAYREVILLE BORCUGH SCHOOQL DISTRICT
STATEMENT. OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

EXHIBIT "B-7"

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
STATE
UNEMPLOYMENT
COMPENSATION PRIVATE PURPOSE
TRUST FUND AWARD FUND AGENCY FUNDS
$ 197,484.11 56,7115 § 359,605.17
1,326.90
$ 197,484.11 5697115 $ 360,932.07
$ $ 6,542.37
354,386.70
360,932.07
197,484.11
56,971.15
$ 197,484.11 56.971.16 § -0-

The accompanying Noles to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement,
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EXHIBIT "B-8"

SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

ADDITIONS:
Confributions:
From employees
From donors
Total contributions

Investment earnings:
Interest
Net investment earnings
Total additions
DEDUCTIONS:
Awards granted
Unemployment claims
Total deductions
Change in net position

Net position beginning of year

Net position end of year

STATE
UNEMPLOYMENT
PRIVATE PURPOSE COMPENASTION
AWARD FUNDS TRUST FUND
$ $ 199,190.38
10,734.00

10,734.00 199,190.38

52.99 532.62

52.99 532.62

$ 10,786.99  $ 199,723.00
$ 1278271 %

128,215.77

12,782.71 128,215.77

(1,995.72) 71,607.23

58,966.87 125,876.88

$ 56,971.15 3§ 197,484.11

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NOTE 1:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Sayreville Borough School District (the “District”)
have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-
setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles. The more significant of the District’'s accounting policies are described
below:

Reporting Entity

The Sayreville Borough School District is a Type il District jocated in Middlesex
County, New Jersey. The School District is an instrumentality of the State of
New Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The Board of
Education of the Sayreville Borough School District, comprised of nine elected
individuals, is the primary governing authority of the District. A superintendent is
appointed by the Board and is responsible for the administrative control of the
District.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity,
are set forth in Statement No. 39 of the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board entitled “Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component
Units" (GASB 39), as codified in Section 2100 of the GASB Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

Organizations that are legally separate, tax-exempt entities and meet all of the
following criteria should be discretely presented as component units. These
criteria are:

1. The economic resources received or held by the separate organization
are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the primary
government

2. The primary government, or its component unit, is entitled to, or has the
ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic resources of the
organization

3. The economic resources received or held by an individual organization
that the specific primary government, or its component units, is entitle to,
or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to that primary
government
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NOTE 1:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Reporting Entity (Continued)

The combined financial statements include all funds of the District over which the
Board exercises operating control. The operations of the District include
elementary schools, a middle school and a high school, located in the Sayreville
Borough. There were no additional entities required to be included in the
reporting entity under the criteria as described above, in the current fiscal year.
Furthermore, the District is not includable in any other reporting entity on the
basis of such criteria.

Basis of Presentation

The District's basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements,
including a statement of net position and a statement of activities, and fund
financial statements which provide a more detailed level of financial information.

District-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the statement of
activities display information about the District as a whole. These statements
include the financial activities of the overall District, except for fiduciary activities.
Eliminations have been made to minimize the double-counting of internal
activities. These statements distinguish generally between the governmental and
business-type activities of the District. Governmental activities generally are
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange
transactions. Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties.

The statement of net position presents the financial condition of the
governmental and business-type activities of the District at fiscal year end. The
statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for the business-type activity of the District and for each
function of the District’'s governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that
are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include (a) fees and
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and
(b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirement of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as
program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues. The
comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent to
which each governmental function or business segment is seif-financing or draws
from the general revenues of the District.
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NOTE 1:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Fund Financial Statements: During the fiscal year, the District segregates
transactions related to certain District functions or activities in separate funds in
order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance. The
fund financial statements provide information about the District's funds, including
its fiduciary funds. Separate statements are presented for each fund category-
governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Internal service funds are aggregated
and presented in a single column on the face of the proprietary fund statements.
The New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New
Jersey districts to treat each governmental fund as a major fund in accordance
with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The NJDOE as the
oversight entity believes that the presentation of ali funds as major is important
for the public interest and to promote consistency among District financial
reporting models.

Governmental Funds

General Fund The general fund is the general operating fund of the District and
is used to account for all expendable financial resources except those required
to be accounted for in another fund. Included are certain expenditures for
vehicles and movable instructional or non instructional equipment which are
classified in the capital outlay sub-fund.

As required by the New Jersey Statement Department of Education, the District
includes budgeted capital outlay in this fund. U.S. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles as they pertain to governmentat entities state that general
fund resources may be used to directly finance capital outlays for long-lived
improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived exclusively
from unrestricted revenues. Resources for budgeted capital outiay purposes
are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid, district taxes, and
appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition
of or additions to capital assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of
grounds, construction of buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and
the purchase of built-in equipment. These resources can be transferred from
and to the current expense by Board resolution; in certain instances approval by
the County Superintendent of Schools may also be required.

Special Revenue Fund The special revenue fund is used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources from State and Federal Government
(other than those for major capital projects, debt service or proprietary funds)
and local appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.
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NOTE 1:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Capital Projects Funds The capital projects fund is used to account for all
financial resources to be used for the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities (other than those financed by proprietary funds). The financial
resources are derived from temporary notes or serial bonds that are specifically
authorized by the voters as a separate question on the ballot either during the
annual election or at a special election.

Debt Service Fund The debt service fund is used to account for the
accumulation of resources for, and the payment of principal and interest on debt
issued to finance major property acquisition, construction and improvement
programs.

Proprietary Funds

Enterprise Fund The enterprise fund accounts for all revenues and expenses
pertaining to the District's Food Service Fund and Community School. These
funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises. The stated intent is that the cost
(i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or
services to the students on a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily
through user charges.

Internal_Service Funds This fund has been established o account for the
financing of the self-insurance of the prescription plan and dental plan provided
by the Sayreville Borough School District. Services are provided on a cost-
reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds

Agency Funds The agency funds are used to account for assets held by the
District on behalf of outside parties, including other governments, or on behalf of
other funds within the District. The agency funds included are as follows:

Payroll and Student Activities Funds These are agency funds used to account
for the assets that the District holds on behalf of others as their agent. Agency
funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of resuits of
aoperations.

Unemployment_Insurance Trust Funds An expendable trust fund used to
account for unemployment compensation claims as they arise.
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NOTE 1:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fiduciary Funds (Continued)

Scholarship Fund These are trust funds used to account for assets donated by
individuals that will provide for the payment of awards and scholarships to district
students.

Basis of Accounting-Measurement Focus

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial
records and reported in the financial statements.

District-wide, Proprietary, and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements: The District-
wide financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting.
Governmental funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in
the accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting arise in the recognition of
revenue, the recording of unearned revenue, and in the presentation for
expenses versus expenditures. Ad Valorem (Property) Taxes are susceptible to
accrual as under New Jersey State Statute a municipality is required to remit to
its school district the entire balance of taxes in the amount voted upon or
certified, prior to the end of the school year. The District records the entire
approved tax levy as revenue (accrued) at the start of the fiscal year, since the
revenue is both measurable and available.

The District is entitled to receive monies under the established payment schedule
and the unpaid amount is considered to be an “accounts receivable”. Revenue
from grants, entitlements, and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Governmental Fund
Financial Statements: Governmental funds are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Under this method, revenues are recognized when measurabie and
available. “Measurable” means the amount of the transactions can be
determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures
are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and
interest on long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences,
which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have matured. General
capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt and acquisitions under capital
leases are reported as other financing sources.
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Sayreville Borough School District
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control

Annual appropriated budgets are prepared in the spring of each year for the
general, special revenue, and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to
the county office for approval. In accordance with P.L. 2011, ¢. 202, which
became effective January 17, 2012, the District elected to move the April school
Board election to the date of the November general election thereby eliminating
the vote on the annual base budget. Budgets are prepared using the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The legal level of budgetary control is established at
line item accounts within each fund. Line item accounts are defined as the
lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the minimum
chart of accounts referenced in N.JA.C. 6A:23-2.2(f)1. Expenditures may not
legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the line item level. All budget
amendments and transfers must be approved by School Board resolution. Six
Budget amendments totaling $1,039,937.33 were approved by resolution during
the year ended June 30, 2020.

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information
reflect the original budget and the amended budget (which have been adjusted
for legally authorized revisions of the annual budgets during the year).

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and
unexpended grant appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The
capital projects fund presents the remaining project appropriations compared to
current year expenditures. Formal budgetary integration info the accounting
system is employed as a management control device during the fiscal year. For
governmental funds, there are no substantial differences between the budgetary
basis of accounting and generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) with
the exception of the legally mandated (NJSA 18A:22-44.2) revenue recognition of
one or more deferred State Aid payments for budgetary purposes only due to the
State deferral of such payments into the subsequent budget year and the
accounting treatment of encumbrances in the special revenue fund as described
below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal
budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered
appropriations lapse at fiscal year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Budgets/Budgetary Control (Continued)

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant
accounting budgetary basis. The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from
GAARPR in that the grant accounting budgetary basis recognized encumbrances as
expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the
presentation of GAAP basis financial records.

Encumbrance Accounting

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other
commitments for the expenditures of resources are recorded to reserve a portion
of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in governmental funds
other than the special revenue fund are reported as assignhed fund balances at
fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather
commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund for which the District has
received advances are reflected in the balance sheet as unearned revenues at
fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An
entry will be made at the beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the
appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the outstanding encumbrance
amount as of the current fiscal year end.

Interfunds

Interfund receivables and payables arise from transactions between particular
funds and are considered short term in duration. The interfund transactions are
recorded by all funds affected in the period in which the transactions are
executed and are part of the district's available spendable resources.

Inventories and Prepaid Expenses

Inventories of materials and supplies held for consumption in the governmental
funds are recorded as expendifures at the time of purchase and year end
balances are not reported in the financial statements.

Inventories of food and/or supplies in the food service fund are recorded at cost
on a first-in, first-out basis or, in the case of Food Distribution Commodities, at
stated value which approximates market.

Prepaid expenses which benefit future periods, other than those recorded in the
enterprise fund, are recorded as expenditures in the year of purchase.

43



NOTE 1:

&vrevill@orough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

The District has an established formal system of accounting for its capital assets.
Capital Assets used for governmental purposes, which include land, buildings
and improvements and furniture and equipment, are only reported in the district-
wide financial statements. The District generally defines capital assets as assets
with an initial cost of $2,000.00 or more and an estimated useful life in excess of
one year. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost.
Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
received. The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add {o the
value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives are not capitalized.

Capital assets are depreciated in the district-wide statements using the straight-
line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Estimated Life

School Buildings 50
Building Improvements 20
Electrical/Plumbing 30
Vehicles 8

Office and Computer Equipment 10
Instructional Equipment 10
Grounds Equipment 15

Compensated Absences

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacation, sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
16 (GASB 16), “Accounting for Compensated Absences.” A liability for
compensated absences atfributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits. The District
uses the "vesting method" for estimating its accrued sick and vacation leave
liability. District employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying
amounts under the District's personnel policies. In the event of termination, an
employee is reimbursed for accumulated vacation. The liability for vested
compensated absences of the District is recorded in the government-wide
financial statements and includes salary related payments.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Compensated Absences {Continued)

For the district-wide statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be
used in the following year. For the governmental funds in the fund financial
statements, a liability is reported only for to the extent of the amount actually due
at year end as a result of employee resignations/retirements. Compensated
absences are a reconciling item between the fund level and district-wide
presentations.

In proprietary and similar trust funds, compensated absences are recorded as an
expense and liability of the fund that will pay for them.

Fund Equity

Fund balance restrictions are used to indicate that portion of the fund balance
that is not available for expenditures or is legally segregated for a specific future
use. Designation of portions of the fund balances are established to indicate
tentative plans for financial utilization in a future pericd. The unassigned fund
balances represent the amount available for future budgetary operations.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue in the general, special revenue and proprietary funds
represents funds which have been received but not yet earned. A corresponding
accounts receivable has also been established for any open encumbrances at
year end which is an allowable practice under generally accepted accounting
principles. Unearned revenue in the Proprietary Fund represents deposits from
students for future program fees.

Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations

All payables, accrued liabilities, and long-term obligations are reported on the
district-wide financial statements. In general, governmental fund payables and
accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner and in full from
current financial resources are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
contractually required pension contributions and compensated absences that are
paid from governmental funds are reported as liabilities on the fund financial
statements only to the extent that they are due for payment during the current
year. lLong term debt is recognized as a liability on the fund financial statements
when due.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net
investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any borrowing used for the
acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. Net position is
reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either
through the enabling legisiation adopted by the District or through external
restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other
governments. The District’s policy is to first apply restricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
positions are available.

Fund Balance Restrictions

GASB Statement 54, "Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions” modifies fund balance reporting and clarifies fund type definitions.
This Statement aims to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by
providing clearer fund balance clarifications that can be applied more
consistently.

Under the standard, in the fund financial statements, governmental funds report
the following classifications of fund balance:

Nonspendable ~ includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either
not spendable in form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained
intact.

Restricted — includes amounts restricted by external sources (creditors, laws of
other governments, etc.) or by constitutional provision or enabling legislation. The
District reports the Capital Reserve, Maintenance Reserve, Emergency Reserve
and Excess Surplus as Restricted Fund Balance.

Committed - includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes.
Committed fund balance is reported pursuant to resolutions passed by the Board
of Education, the District's highest level of decision making authority.
Commitments may be modified or rescinded only through resolutions approved
by the Board of Education.

Assigned — includes amounts that the District intends to use for a specific
purpose, but do not meet the definition of restricted or committed fund bhalance.
Under the District’'s policy, amounts may be assigned by the Business
Administrator. The District reports Year End Encumbrances and Amounts
Designated for Subsequent Years Expenditures as Assigned Fund Balance.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fund Balance Restrictions (Continued)

Unassigned - is the residual classification for the general fund. This classification
represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has
not been restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the
general fund. The general fund should be the only fund that reports a positive
unassigned fund balance amount. In other governmental funds, if expenditures
incurred for specific purposes exceeded the amounts restricted, committed, or
assigned to those purposes, it may be necessary to report a negative unassigned
fund balance.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balance is available, the District considers restricted funds to
have been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed,
assigned, or unassigned fund balance are available, the District considers
amounts to have been spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds,
and finally unassigned funds, as needed.

Revenues Exchange and Non-exchande Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and
receives essentially equal value, is recorded on the accrual basis when the
exchange takes place. On the modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available.
Available means the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or
are expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities
of the current fiscal year. For the District, "available” means within sixty days of
the fiscal year end.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the District receives value without directly
giving equal value in return, include property taxes, grants, entitiements, and
donations. On the accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the period in which the income is earned. Revenue from grants,
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements have been satisfied.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions (Continued)

Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which specify the year when
the resources are required to be used or the fiscal year when use is first
permitted; matching requirements, in which the District must provide local
resources to be used for a specific purpose; and expenditure requirements, in
which the resources are provided to the District on a reimbursement basis. On
the modified accrual basis, revenue from non-exchange transactions must aiso
be available before it can be recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered
both measurable and available at fiscal year end: property taxes available as an
advance, interest, and tuition.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated direcily from the
primary activity of the enterprise fund. For the District, these revenues are sales
in the Enterprise Funds. Operating expenses are necessary costs incurred to
provide the service that is the primary activity of the enterprise fund.

Allocation of Indirect Expenses

The District reporis ali direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities.
Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a function. Indirect
expenses are allocated to functions but are reported separately in the Statement
of Activities. Employee benefits, including the employer's share of social
security, workers compensation, and medical and dental benefits, were allocated
based on salaries of the program. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is
specifically identified by function and is included in the indirect expense column
of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense that could not be attributed
to a specific function is considered an indirect expense and is reported
separately on the Statement of Activities.

Extraordinary and Special ltems

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are unusual in nature and
infrequent of occurrence. Special items are transactions or events that are within
control of management and are either unusual in nature or infrequent in
occurrence. Neither of these types of fransactions occurred during the fiscal
year.

Management Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and
expenditures/expenses during the reporting period. Actual resuits could differ
from those estimates.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

In the District-Wide Financial Statements for purposes of measuring the net
pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District's proportionate share of the New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement System ("PERS") and the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
(“TPAF"} and the additions to/deductions from these retirement systems’
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they were
reported by PERS and TPAF. For this purpose, benefit payments (inciuding
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements the year end Net pension liability
is not required to be reflected. Pension related revenues and expenditures are
reflected based on amounts that are normally expected to be liquidated with
available financial resources for required pension contributions. Expenditures for
PERS are recognized based upon billings made by the State of New Jersey due
April 1% of each fiscal year. TPAF contributions are paid on the District’s behalf
by the State of New Jersey. The Governmental Fund Financial Statements
reflects both a revenue and expenses for this pension contribution.

Deferred Outflowsiinflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Currently, the District has
only one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts that
are pension related.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Currently, the District has only one
item that qualifies for reporting in this category, deferred amounts that are
pension related.
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For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The Board considers peity cash, change funds, cash in banks, and short term
investments with original maturities of three months or less as cash and cash
equivalents. Investments are stated at cost, which approximates market.

Deposits

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in public depositories
which are located in New Jersey and which meet the requirements of the
Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA requires a bank
that accepts public funds to be a public depository. A public depository is defined
as a state bank, a national bank, or a savings bank, which is located in the State
of New Jersey, the deposits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit
insurance Corporation. The statutes also require public depositories to maintain
coliateral for deposits of public funds that exceed certain insurance limits. Each
depository participating in the GUDPA system must pledge collateral equal to 5%
of the average amount of its public deposits and 100% of the average amount of
its public funds in excess of 75% of its capital funds. No collateral is required for
amounts covered by FDIC insurance. The collateral which may be pledged to
support these deposits includes obligations of the Siate and federal
governments, insured securities and other collateral approved by the
Department. When the capital position of the depository deteriorates or the
depository takes an unusually large amount of public deposits, the Department of
Banking and Insurance requires additional collateral to be pledged. Under
(GUDPA), if a public depository fails, the collateral it has pledged, plus the
collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full amount of the
deposits to the governmental unit.

The Sayreville Borough School District had the following cash and cash
equivalents at June 30, 2020:

Fund Type Amount

Cash in Bank;

Governmental Funds $ 12,898,697.27

Proprietary Funds 462,082.91

Internal Service Funds 620,221.84

Fiduciary Funds 2,034,670.58
Total Cash in Bank 3 16,015,672.60
Less: Reconciling liems (1,449,255.78)

$ 14,566,416.82
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event
of a bank failure, the deposits may not be returned. The District does not have a
specific deposit policy for custodial credit risk other than those policies that adhere
to the requirements of statute. As of June 30, 2020, based upon the coverage
provided by FDIC and NJGUDPA, no amount of the bank balance was exposed to
custodial credit risk. Of the cash on balance in the bank of $16,015,672.60,
$250,000.00 was covered by Federal Depository Insurance and $15,765,672.60
was covered under the provisions of NJGUDPA.

Investments

The types of investments which may be purchased by the District are strictly
limited by the express authority of the N.JS.A. 18A:20-37 Education,
Administration of Schoo! Districts. Permitted investments include any of the
following type of securities:

1. Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America;

2. Government money market mutual funds which are purchased from an
investment company or investment trust which is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission under the “Investment Company Act of
1940," 15 U.S.C. 80a1 et seq., and operated in accordance with 17 CF.R. §
270.2a7 and which portfolio is limited to U.S. Government securities that
meet the definition of an eligible security pursuant to 17 C.F.R. § 270.2a7 and
repurchase agreements that are collateralized by such U.S. Government
securities in which direct investment may be made pursuant to paragraphs
(1) and (3) of N.J.S.A, 18A:2037. These funds are also required to be rated
by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

3. Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in
accordance with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not
greater than 397 days from the date of purchase, provided that such
obligation bears a fixed rate of interest not dependent on any index or other
external factor,
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Investments {Continued)

4.

Bonds or other obligations of the Local Unit or bonds or other obligations
of school districts of which the Local Unit is a part or within which the
school district is located.

Bonds or other obligations, having a maturity date not more than 397
days from date of purchase, approved by the Division of Investment of the
Department of Treasury for investment by School Districts;

Local government investment pools that are fully invested in U.S.
Government securities that meet the definition of eligible security
pursuant to 17 C.F.R. § 270a7 and repurchase agreements that are
collateralized by such U.S. Government securities in which direct
investment may be made pursuant to paragraphs (1) and (3) of N.J.S.A.
18A:2037. This type of investment is also required to be rated in the
highest category by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.

Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund
established pursuant to section 1 of P.L. 1977, c.281 C. 52:18A-80.4); or

Agreements for the repurchase of fully collateralized securities if:

a. the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to
paragraphs (1) and (3) of this subsection,

b. the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;
c. the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

d. the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository
as defined in section 1 of P.L.. 1970, ¢.236 C. 17:1941); and

e. a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and
security of collateral is executed.

As of June 30, 2020, the District had no outstanding investments.

Based upon the limitation set forth by New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37
and its existing investment practices, the District is generally not exposed
to credit risks, custodial credit risks, concentration of credit risks and
interest rate risks for its investments, nor is it exposed to foreign currency
risks for its deposits and investments.
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Total capital assets being
depreciated, net of depreciation

Total Governmental Activities, net

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:
Beginning Deletions & Ending
Balance Additions Transfers Balance
Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $6,767,549.00 $6,767,549.00
Construction in Progress 22,755.38 22,755.38
Total Capitat Assets not
being depreciated 5,790,304.38 6,790,304.38
Leasehold improvements 521,800.00 521,800.00
Site improvementis 3,798,998.00 3,799,998.00
Buildings & Building Improvements 110,928,902.00 $1,565,804.00 112,494,706.00
Machinery & Equipment 11,874,469.00 669,331.00 ($583,454.00) 11,960,346.00
Totals at historical cost 127,125 169.00 2,235,135.00 {583,454.00) 128,776,850.00
Gross Assels (Memo only) 133,915473.38 2,235,135.00 (583,454.00} 135,567,154.38
Less: Accumulated Depraciation
Leasehold improvements {621,800.00) {521,800.00)
Site improvements {2,768,611.00) {105,448.00) (2,874,059.00)
Buildings & Building Improvements (41,128,585.00) {2,765,697.00) {43,894,282.00)
Machinery & Equipment {10,281,026.00) (456,352.00) {583,454.00) {10,153,924.00)
Total Depreciation {54,700,022.00) (3,327,497.00) {583,454.00) {57.444,065.00)

72,425 147.00

{(1.092,362.00)

71,332,785.00

$79,215,451.28

{$1.092,362.00

$78,123,089.38
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NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Balance
Proprietary Activities:
Machinery & Equipment $560,029.00 $8,941.00 $568,970.00
Totals at historical cost 560,029.00 8,941.00 568,970.00
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Machinery & Equipment {563,960.00) (7,295.00) {561,255.00)
Total Depreciation {553,960.00) (7,295.00) (561,255.00)
Total Proprietary Fund Activities, net $6,069.00 $1,646.00 $7,715.00

Depreciation expense was charged to functional expenses areas of the

District for Governmental Activities as follows:

instruction
Support services:

Student & Instruction Related Services

General Adminisiration
Schoo! Administration

Plant Operations & Maintenance

Pupil Transportation

Direct Expense of Various Functions
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$35,878.00

238,990.00
522.00
11,681.00
50,191.00
119,090.00
2,871,145.00
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Sayreville Borough School District
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For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds are issued by the District pursuant to the provisions of Title 18A,
Education, of the New Jersey Statutes and are required to be approved by the
voters of the municipality through referendum. The proceeds of bonds are
recorded in the Capital Projects Fund and are restricted to the use for which
they were approved in the bond referendum. All bonds are retired in annual
instaliments within the statutory period of usefulness.

School Bonds issued by the District are entitled to and benefit from the provision
of the New Jersey School Board Reserve Act P.L. 1980 ¢.72. Basically, funds
are held by the State of New Jersey within its State Fund for the Support of Free
Public Schools as a school bond reserve pledged by law to secure payment of
principal and interest due on such bonds in the event of the inability of the issuer
to make paymenits.

The following is a summary of transactions that affect long-term liabilities for the
year ended June 30, 2020:

Governmental Activities:

Balance Balance Amounts due
June 30, June 30, Within
2019 Additions Reductions 2020 one year
Bonds Payabie $36,680,000.00 $2,440,000.00 $34,240,000.00 $2,535,000.00
Compensated Absences 1,449,815.00 $2,419,951.02 3,869,866.02
Capital Leases Payable 2,050,209.52 1,163,803.01 1,223,100.92 1,991,011.61 881,680.20
Pension Liability 22.282,316.00 2,743 532.00 19,538,784.00

Totals

$62,462,440.52 $3,583,854.03 $6,406,632.92 $59,639,661.63 $3,418,680.20

Business-Type Activities:

Balance Balance Amounts due
June 30, June 30, Within
2019 Additions 2020 one vear
Compensated Absences $30,691.78 $3,683.22 $34,375.00 (-
Totals $30,691.78 $3,683.22 $34,375.00 -0-
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Debt Service Requirements:

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding as of June 30, 2020,
including interest payments on issued debt, are as follows:

Fiscal Year

June 30 Principal interest Jotal

FY2021 $2,535,000.00 $1,082,368.78 $3,617,368.78
FY2022 2,625,000.00 990,194.89 3,615,194.89
FY2023 2,725,000.00 900,559.74 3,625,559.74
FY2024 2,830,000.00 801,095.20 3,631,095.20
FY2025 2,930,000.00 704,883.14 3,634,883.14
FY2026 3,010,000.00 625,634.82 3,635,634.82
FY2027 3,105,000.00 536,332.10 3,641,332.10
FY2028 3,430,000.00 400,100.00 3,830,100.00
Fy2029 3,565,000.00 278,025.00 3,843,025.00
FY2030 3,685,000.00 169,275.00 3,854,275.00
FY2031 3,800,000.00 57,000.00 3,857,000.00

$34,240,000.00 $6,545,468.67 $40,785,468.67
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LONG-TERM LIABILITIES {CONTINUED)

General obligation school and refunding bonds payable with their outstanding

balances are comprised of the following individual issues:

$28,725,000.00 in Refunding School Bonds dated July 15, 2012,
due in remaining annual installments ranging between
$1,145,000.00 and $3,800,000.00 beginning July 15, 2020 and
ending July 15, 2030 with interest from 3.00% to 5.00%

$6,640,000.00 in Refunding School Bonds dated March 7, 2016,
due in remaining annual installments ranging between $540,000.00
and $720,000.00 beginning March 1, 2021 and ending March 1,
2027 with interest from 2.00% to 5.00%

$7,880,000.00 in Refunding School Bonds dated January 26, 2017,
due in remaining annual installments ranging between $745,000.00
and $850,000.00 beginning March 1, 2021 and ending March 1,
2027 with interest at 1.863%

Bonds Authorized But Not Issued

Amount
Qutstanding
June 30, 2020

24,085,000.00

4,500,000.00

5,645,000.00

$34,240,000.00

As of June 30, 2020, the District did not have any Bonds Authorized But Not

Issued.
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NOTE 4: LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Capital L eases Payable

The District has entered into various capital leases for copier equipment, school
buses, and technology upgrades. The following is a schedule of the future
minimum lease payments under capital leases, and the present value of the net
minimum lease payments at June 30, 2020

Fiscal Year Ended Governmental
June 30 Funds
2021 $903,108.34
2022 760,302.85
2023 357,691.40
Total Minimum Lease Payments 2,021,102.69
Less: Amount Representing interest 30,091.08
Present Value of Lease Payments $1,991,011.861
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PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans All required employees of the District are covered by the
Public Employees’ Retirement System, the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
or the Defined Contribution Retirement Program which have been established by
state statute and are administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and
Benefits {Division). According to the State of New Jersey Administrative Code,
ali obligations of each system will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should
the system terminate. The Division issues a publicly available financial report
that includes the financial statements and required supplementary information for
each of the above systems. These reports may be obtained by writing to the
Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New Jersey, 08625 or
on line at www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF) The Teachers’ Pension and
Annuity Fund was established as of January 1, 1955, under the provisions of
N.J.S.A. 18A:66 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
is considered a cost-sharing multiple employer plan with a special funding
situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made by the
State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system’s other related non-
contributing employers. Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or
members of the professional staff certified by the State Board of Examiners, and
employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified,
professional and certified.

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) The Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) was established as of January 1, 1955 under the
provision of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees’ Retirement
System is a cost-sharing multiple employer plan. Membership is mandatory for
substantiaily all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not
required to be a member of another state administered retirement system or
other state or local jurisdiction.

Defined Contribution Retirement Program (DCRP) The Defined Contribution
Retirement Program (DCRP) was established under the provision of Chapter 92,
P.L. 2007 and Chapter 103, P.L. 2007 to provide coverage elected and certain
appointed officials, effective July 1, 2007. Membership is mandatory for such
individuals with vesting occurring after one year of membership.
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PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Significant Legisliation

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 enacted certain changes in the
operations and benefit provisions of the TPAF and the PERS systems.

As a result of these changes new members of TPAF and PERS, hired on or after
June 28, 2011, will need 30 years of creditable service and have attained the age
of 65 for receipt of the early retirement benefit without a reduction of 1/4 of 1% for
each month that the member is under age 65. New members will be eligible for a
service retirement benefit at age 65.

Funding Changes

Under the new legislation, the methodology for calculating the unfunded accrued
liability payment portion of the employer's annual pension contribution to the
PERS, and TPAF. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) will be
amortized for each plan over an open-ended 30 year period and paid in level
dollars. Beginning with the July 1, 2019 actuarial valuation (July 1, 2018 for
PFRS), the UAAL will be amortized over a closed 30 year period until the
remaining period reaches 20, when the amortization period will revert to an open-
ended 20 year period.

COLA Suspension

The payment of automatic cost-of-living adjustment to current and future retirees
and beneficiaries are suspended until reactivated as permitted by this law.

Vesting and Benefit Provisions

The vesting and benefit provisions of PERS are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and
43.3B, and N.J.S.A. 18A:6C for TPAF. All benefits vest after ten years of
service, except for post-retirement healthcare benefits that vest after 25 years of
service.

Members are always fully vested for their own contributions and, after three
years of service credit, become vested for 2% of refated interest earned on the
contributions. In the case of death before retirement, members’ beneficiaries are
entitled to full interest credited to the members’ accounts.

Contribution Requirements

The contribution policy is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and N.JS.A 1866, and
requires contributions by active members and contributing employers. Plan
member and employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey
legislation.

60



NOTE 5:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

PENSION PLANS {CONTINUED)
Contribution Reguirements {Continued)

Effective June 28, 2011, P.L. 2011, c. 78 provides for increases in the employee
contribution rates: from 5.5% to 6.5% plus an additional 1% phased-in over 7
years beginning in the first year, meaning after 12 months, after the law’s
effective date for TPAF and PERS.

Employers are required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in both
TPAF and PERS. The actuarially determined contribution includes funding for
cost-of-living adjustments, noncontributory death benefits, and post-retirement
medical premiums. Under current statute the District is a non-contributing
employer of TPAF (i.e. the State of New Jersey makes the employer contribution
on behalf of public school districts.

Three Year Trend Information for PERS

Annual Percentage
Year Ended Pension Cost of APC Net Pension
June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation
2020 $1,054,783.00 100% $1,054,783.00
2019 1,125,661.00 100% 1,125,661.00
2018 1,087,188.00 100% 1,087,188.00

Three Year Trend information for TPAF (On-behalf Contribution)

Annual Percentage
Year Ended Pension Cost of APC Net Pension
June 30 (APC) Contributed Obligation
2020 $7,339,975.00 100% -0-
2019 7,330,064.00 100% -0-
2018 5,657,863.00 100% -0-

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the
District for the years ended June 30, 2020, 2019 and 2018 $3,208,008.99,
$3,062,857.17 and $2,944,098.35, respectively for the employer’s share of social
security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries.
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Public Employees Retirement System (PERS)

At June 30, 2020, the District reported a liability of $19,538,784.00 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2019, and the fotal pension liability used to calculate
the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1,
2018 which was rolled forward o June 30, 2019. The District's proportion of the
net pension liability was based on a projection of the District's long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of ail
participating members, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the District's
proportion was 0.1084374530 percent, which was a decrease of 0.0047310570
percent from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized pension expense of
$441,290.00 in the government-wide financial statements. This pension expense
was based on the pension plans June 30, 2019 measurement date.

At June 30, 2020, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $350,696 $86,314
Changes of assumptions 1,951,019 6,781,850
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments 308,427
Changes in proportion and differences between District
contributions and proportionate share of contributions 150,488 1,564,295
District contributions subsequent to the measurement date 1,192,610

$3,644,813 $8,740,886

The $1,192,610.00 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to
pensions resulting from school district contributions subsequent to the
measurement date (i.e. for the school year ending June 30, 2020, the plan
measurement date is June 30, 2019) will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) {Continued)

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as
follows:

Year Ended
June 30 Amount
2020 ($846,952)
2021 (2,112,986)
2022 {1,917,045)
2023 (1,050,142)
2024 {361,558)

@6.288,683!
Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018, which rolled forward to
June 30, 2019. These actuarial valuations used the following assumptions:

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
inflation 2.75% 2.25%
Salary Increases ‘
Through 2026 2.00-6.00% 1.65-4.15%
Thereafter 3.00-7.00% 2.65-5.15%
Based on Based on
Years of Service Age
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% 7.00%

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 General Below-
Median Income Employee mortality table with an 82.2% adjustment for males
and 101.4% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base
year of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based

on the Pub-2010 General Below-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table
with a 91.4% adjustment for males and 99.7% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability retirement rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the
Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree mortality table with a 127.7% adjustment
for males and 117.2% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from
the base year of 2010 on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based
on Scale MP-2019.
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{CONTINUED]}

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the
resuilts of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 to June 30,
2018.

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at both June 30, 20189 and June 30, 2018) is determined by
the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors of the Division of
Investment and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the board of trustees and the
actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined tfo
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major
asset class included in PERS’s target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Return
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash Equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.8. Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
Investment Grade Credit 10.00% 4.25%
High Yield 2.00% 5.37%
Private Credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real Assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real Estate 7.50% 8.33%
U.S. Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging Market Equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private Equity 12.00% 10.85%
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{CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.28% and
5.66% as of June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018, respectively. These single
blended discount rates were based on the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments of 7.00% for both June 30 2019 and June 30, 2018
and a municipal bond rate of 3.50% and 3.87% for June 30, 2019 and June 30,
2018 respectively based on the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index,
which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher.

The projection of cash flows used {o determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members will be made at the current member contribution
rates and that contributions from employers will be based on 70% of the
actuarially determined contributions for the State employer and 100% of
actuarially determined contributions for the local employers. Based on those
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2057.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied
to projected benefit payments through 2057 and the municipal bond rate was
applied to projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total
pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Collective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension
ability as of June 30, 2019, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed
above as well as what the collective net pension liability would be if it was
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

1% At Current 1%
Decrease Discount Rate Ihcrease
5.28% 6.28% 7.28%
District's proporiionate share
of the net pension liability $26,846,163 $19,538,784 $16,740,530
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(CONTINUED)

Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) (Continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public
Employees Retirement System (PERS). The report may be obtained at State of
New Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New
Jersey 08625-0295 http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions.

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF)

The employer contributions for local participating employers are legally required
to be funded by the State in accordance with N.J.S.A 18:66-33. Therefore, these
local participating employers are considered to be in a special funding situation
as defined by GASB Statement No. 68 and the State is treated as a nonemployer
contributing entity. Since the local participating employers do not contribute
directly to the plan (except for employer specific financed amounts), there is no
net pension liability or deferred outflows or inflows to report in the financial
statements of the local participating employers. However, the notes to the
financial statements of the local participating employers must disclose the portion
of the nonemployer contributing entities' total proportionate share of the net
pension liability that is associated with the iocal participating employer.

The portion of the TPAF Net Pension Liability that was associated with the
District recognized at June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Net Pension Liability:

Districts proportionate share -0-
State’s proportionate share
associated with the District $224,038,444
$224,038,444

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018 which was rolied forward to June 30,
2019. The net pension liability associated with the District was based on a
projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating school districts and the
State, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2019, the proportion of the TPAF net
pension liability associated with the District was .3650562145% which was a
decrease of .0034083634 percent from its proportion measured as of June 30,
2018.
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PENSION - GASB 68
(CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized on-behalf pension
expense and revenue of $13,214,386.00 in the government-wide financial
statements for contributions provided by the State. This pension expense and
revenue was based on the pension plans June 30, 2019 measurement date.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2019 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2018, which was rolled forward
to June 30, 2019. This actuarial valuation used the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018
inflation rate: ' 2.25%
Price 2.75%
Wage 3.25%
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.55%-4.45% 1.55%-4.55%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Thereafter 2.75%-5.65% 2.00%-5.45%
Based on Years of Based on Years of
Service Service
Investment Rate of Return 7.00% 7.00%

Mortality Rate

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-
Median Income Employee mortality table with a 93.9% adjustment for males and
85.3% adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year
of 2010 on a generational basis. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on
the Pub-2010 Teachers Above-Median Income Healthy Retiree mortality table
with a 114.7% adjustment for males and 99.6% adjustment for females, and with
future improvement from the base year of 2010 on a generational basis.
Disability mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled
Retiree mortality table with a 106.3% adjustment for males and 100.3%
adjustment for females, and with future improvement from the base year of 2010
on a generational basis. Mortality improvement is based on Scale MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2018 valuation were based on the

results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 to June 30,
2018.
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Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions {Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% and 7.00% at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018
respectively) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the
Directors of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits,
the board of trustees and the actuaries.

The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset
class included in TPAF's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2019 are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Assets Class Allocation Rate of Retumn
Risk Mitigation Strategies 3.00% 4.67%
Cash Equivalents 5.00% 2.00%
U.8. Treasuries 5.00% 2.68%
investment Grade Credit 10.00% 4.25%
High Yield 2.00% 5.37%
Private Credit 6.00% 7.92%
Real Assets 2.50% 9.31%
Real Estate 7.50% 8.33%
U.S. Equity 28.00% 8.26%
Non-U.S. Developed Market Equity 12.50% 9.00%
Emerging Market Equity 6.50% 11.37%
Private Equity 12.00% 10.85%
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{CONTINUED)

Teachers Pensions and Annuity Fund (TPAF) (Continued)

Actuarial Assumptions {Continued)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.60% and
4.86% as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. This single blended discount
rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments of 7.00% and 7.00, and a municipal bond rate of 3.50% and
3.87% as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively, based on the Bond Buyer Go
20-Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general cobligation
municipal bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from
plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made based on the contribution rate in the
most recent fiscal year. The State contributed 50% of the actuarially determined
contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current
plan members through 2054, Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
plan investments was applied to projected benefit payments through 2054, and
the municipal bond rate was applied to projected benefit payments after that date
in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

Because the District's proportionate share of the net pension liabiiity is zero,
consideration of potential changes in the discount rate is not applicable to the
District.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Teachers
Public and Annuity Fund (TPAF). The report may be obtained at State of New
Jersey Division of Pensions and Benefits P.O. Box 295 Trenton, New Jersey

08625-0295 http://www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions
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The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan is a multiple-
employer defined benefit OPEB pian, which is administered on a pay-as-you-go
basis. Accordingly, no assets are accumulated in a qualifying trust that meets the
criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The State Health
Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan provides medical, prescription
drug, and Medicare Part B reimbursement to retirees and their covered
dependents of local education employers.

The employer contributions for the participating local education employers are
legally required to be funded by the State of New Jersey in accordance with
N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f. Therefore, these local participating employers are
considered to be in a special funding situation as defined by GASB Statement
No. 75 and the State is treated as a nonemployer contributing entity. According
to N.J.S.A 52:14-17.32f the State provides employer-paid coverage to
employees who retire from a board of education or county college with 25 years
or more of service credit in, or retires on a disability pension from, one or more of
the following plans: the Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF), the Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS), the Police and Firemen Retirement
System (PFRS), or the Alternate Benefit Program (ABP). Pursuant to Chapter 78,
P.L, 2011, future retirees eligible for postretirement medical coverage who have
less than 20 years of creditable service on June 28, 2011 will be required to pay
a percentage of the cost of their health care coverage in retirement provided they
retire with 25 or more years of pension service credit. The percentage of the
premium for which the retiree will be responsibie will be determined based on the
retiree's annual retirement benefit and level of coverage.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

The State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employees Plan Membership
covered by the benefit terms consisted of the following:

Active Plan Members 216,892
Inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Currently Receiving Benefits 148,051

inactive Plan Members or Beneficiaries
Not Yet Receiving Benefits -0-
Total Plan Members 364,943

70



NOTE 7:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability

The portion of the total Non-Employer OPEB Liability that was associated with
the District at June 30, 2020 was as follows:

Total OPEB Liability:

District's Proportionate Share $-0-
State's Proportionate Share associated
with the District 147,527,033
$147,527,033

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, which was rolied forward to June 30,
2019.

The total Non-Employer OPEB Liability was determined separately based on
actual data of the District.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the District recognized on-behalf post-
employment expense and revenue of $4,948,571.00 in the government-wide
financial statements for contributions provided by the State. This expense and
revenue was based on the plans June 30, 2019 measurement date.

At June 30, 2019, the District's proportion was 0.3535353027 percent, which was
an increase of .0071013030 from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2018.

The State, a nonemployer contributing entity, is the only entity that has a legal
obligation to make employer contributions to OPEB for qualified retired PERS.
TPAF/ABP and PFRS participants. The District’s proportionate share percentage
determined under paragraphs 193 and 203 through 205 of GASBS No. 75 is zero
percent. Consequently, the District did not recognize any portion of the collective
Non-Employer OPEB liability on the Statement of Net Position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions and Other Imputes

The total Non-Employer OPEB liability as of June 30, 2019 was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, which was rolled forward to June 30,
2019. The actuarial assumptions vary for each plan member depending on the
pension plan the member is enrolled in. This actuarial valuation used the
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement:

June 30, 2019

TPAF/ABP PERS PERS
inflation -~ 2.5%
Salary Increases
Through 2026 1.55-3.05%" 2.00-6.00%" 3.25-15.25%"
Thereafter 1.55-3.05%* 3.00-7.00%* Applied to

All Future Years

*- Based on Years of Service

Preretirement mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Healthy "Teachers"
(TPAF/ABP), "General" (PERS), and "Safety" (PFRS) classification headcount-
weighted mortality table with fully generational mortality improvement projections
from the central year using Scale MP-2019. Postretirement mortality rates were
based on the Pub-2010 "General" classification headcount-weighted mortality
tabie with fully generational mortality improvement projections from the central
year using Scale MP-2019. Disability mortality was based on the Pub-2010
"General" classification headcount-weighted disabled mortality table with fully
generational mortality improvement projections from the central year using Scale
MP-2019.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on
the results of actuarial experience studies for the periods July 1, 2015 — June
30, 2018, July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2018, and July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2018 for
TPAF, PERS and PFRS, respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Health Care Trend Assumptions

For pre-Medicare medical benefits, the trend rate is initially 5.7% and decreases
to a 4.5% long-term trend rate after eight years. For post-65 medical benefits, the
actual fully-insured Medicare Advantage trend rate for fiscal year 2020 is
reflected. The assumed post-65 medical trend is 4.5% for all future years. For
prescription drug benefits, the initial trend rate is 7.5% and decreases {0 2 4.5%
long-term trend rate after eight years. For the Medicare Part B reimbursement,
the trend rate is 5.0%.

Discount Rate

The discount rate for June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019 was 3.50% and 3.87%
respectively. This represenits the municipal bond return rate as chosen by the
Division. The source is the Bond Buyer Go 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index, which
includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AAJAa or higher. As the long-term rate of return is less than the municipal bond
rate, it is not considered in the calculation of the discount rate, rather the discount
rate is set at the municipal bond rate.

Changes in the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability

Shown below are details regarding the Total OPEB non-employer Liability
associated with the District for the measurement period from June 30, 2018 to
June 30, 2019.

Balance at 6/30/18 $159,743,603

Changes for the year:

Service cost 6,647,913
Interest 6,355,127
Differences between expected
and actual experience (23,024,851)
Changes in assumptions or
other inputs 2,199,640
Membership Contributions 134,241
Benefit payments - Net (4,528,640)
Net changes (12,216,570)
Balance at 6/30/19 $147,5627,033
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ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2019, calculated using the discount rate as disclosed
above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be if it was
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1-percentage
point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2019

1.00% At Discount 1.00%
Decrease {2.50%) Rate (3.50) Increase (4.50%)
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPERB L.iability associated
with the District $174,287,725 $147,527,033 $126,269,806

Sensitivity of the Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability to Changes in
Healthcare Trends

The following presents the total Non-Employer OPEB liability associated with the
District as of June 30, 2019, calculated using the healthcare trend rate as
disclosed above as well as what the total Non-Employer OPEB liability would be
if it was calculated using a healthcare trend rate that is 1- percentage point lower
or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2019

1.00% Healthcare Cost 1.00%
Decrease _ Trend Rate ) increase
State of New Jersey's
Proportionate Share of
the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated
with the District $121,555,700 $147,527,033 $181,007,746
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NOTE 7: ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Qutflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability

At June 30, 2019, the State reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to retired school employee’s Non-Employer OPEB
Liability associated with the District from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflow of Inflow of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience $ $ 37,068,054.00
Changes of assumptions 29,985,200.00
Changes in proportion 6,668,259.00
$ 6,668,259.00 % 67,053,254.00

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to the State’s proportionate share of the total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated with the District will be recognized in OPEB expense

as follows:
Year Ended
June 30, Amount

2020 ($7,669,221)
2021 ($7,669,221)
2022 ($7,669,221)
2023 ($7.,669,221)
2024 ($7,669,221)
Total

Thereafter ($22,038,889)

($60,384,995)
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NOTE 9:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR POST-RETIREMENT
BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - GASB 75 (CONTINUED)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Non-Employer OPEB Liability {Continued)

In accordance with GASBS No. 75, the District's proportionate share of school
retirees OPEB is zero. There is no recognition of the allocation of proportionate
share of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources in the
financial statements.

State Health Benefit Local Education Retired Employee Plan Information

The New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits issues publicly available
reports on the OPEB plan. Those reports may be obtained by writing to the
Division of Pension and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, NJ 08625-0295 or on
their website at hitp://www.state ni.usftreasury/pensions/gasb-notices-opeb.shtml

LITIGATION

The District is a defendant in several legal proceedings that are in various stages
of litigation. It is either believed that the outcome of exposure to the Board from
such litigation is either unknown or potential losses, if any, would not be material
to the financial statements as they would be covered by the District’s insurance
policy.

CONTINGENCIES

The District receives financial assistance from the State of New Jersey and the
U.S. Government in the form of grants. Entittement to the funds is generally
conditional upon compliance with terms and conditions of the grant agreements
and applicable regulations, including the expenditure of the funds for eligible
purposes. The State and Federal grants received and expended in the 2019-
2020 fiscal year were subject to the the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB
Circular 15-08 which mandates that grant revenues and expenditures be audited
in conjunction with the District's annual audit if expenditures for federal or state
programs exceed $750,000.00 Findings and questioned costs, if any, relative to
federal and state financial assistance programs are discussed in the Single Audit
Section, Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. In addition, all grants and
cost reimbursements are subject to financial and compliance audits by the
grantors. The District's management does not believe any such audit would
result in material amounts of disallowed costs.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed {o various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage
to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and
natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance The District maintains insurance coverage
covering each of those risks of loss. The administration believes such coverage
is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to the District. Settled
claims have not exceeded the insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years. '

New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance The District has
elected to fund its New Jersey Unemployment Compensation Insurance under
the “Benefit Reimbursement Method®. Under this plan, the District is required to
reimburse the New Jersey Unemployment Trust Fund for benefits paid to its
former employees and charged to its account with the State. The District is billed
quarterly for amounts due to the State. The following is a summary of District
contributions, employee contributions, reimbursements to the State for benefits
paid and the ending balance of the District’s fiduciary trust fund for the current
and previous two years:

Year Ended Employee Amount Ending

June 30 Contributions interest Reimbursed Balance
2020 $199,190.38 $632.62 $128,218.77 $197.484.11
2019 241,111.65 359.00 183,843.32 125,976.88
2018 158,202.36 145.84 177,362.02 68,449.55

Self-Insurance The District is self-insured for prescription benefits and dental
benefits, and has established an internal service fund to account for its self-
insurance activities. The accrued liability for unpaid prescription and dental
claims of $137,300.00 and 13,100.00, respectively, has been recorded in the
financial statements for Incurred But Not Reported Claims (IBNR) The IBNR
liability for prescription benefits has been calculated by the District based on
actual enroliment, the statute of limitations in reporting a claim, and actual claims
reported. In addition, the District has unrestricted net position of $551,288.45 and
$252,705.74, respectively, for future prescription and dental claims.
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Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The District accounts for compensated absences (e.g. unused vacation and sick
leave) as directed by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
16 (GASB 16), "Accounting for Compensated Absences". A liability for
compensated absences attributable to services already rendered and not
contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and
employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the benefits.

District employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in
accordance with the District's personnel policy. Upon termination, employees
are paid for accrued vacation. The District's policy permits employees to
accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the amount to subsequent
years. Upon retirement, employees shali be paid by the District for the unused
sick leave in accordance with the Districts agreements with the various
employee unions.

The liability for vested compensated absences of the governmental fund types
are recorded in the district - wide statement of net position. As of June 30,
2020, a liability existed for compensated absences for governmental fund-types
and enterprise fund-types in the district- wide statement of net position of
$3,869,866.02 and $34,375.00, respectively.

For additional descriptive information see Note 1, Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies.
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NOTE 13:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund The table below reflects the District's Fund Balance at June 30,
2020 on both a GAAP (Exhibit B-1) and Budgetary (Exhibit C-1) basis including
the required adjustment related to the last state aid payment which under GAAP
is not recognized:
Budgetary GAAP
Basis Adjustment Basis

Restricted:

Excess Surplus:
Designated for Subsequent

Year's Expenditures $ 1,174,076.00 $ $ 1,174,076.00
Current Year 1,561,180.08 1,561,190.08
Emergency Reserve 259,443.00 259,443.00
Maintenance Reserve 980,600.72 0980,690.72
Capital Reserve 4,524,109.00 4,524,109.00
Assigned:
Designated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditures 439,250.00 439,250.00
Encumbrances 1,671,357.72 {694,752.78) 976,604.94
Unassigned 2,099,021.81 (2,099,021.81)
$ 12,709,138.33 % (2,793,77459) $ 9,815,363.74

DEFICIT FUND BALANCES / NET POSITION

The District has a deficit fund balance of $279,592.41 in the Special Revenue
Fund as of June 30, 2020 as reported in the fund statements (modified accrual
basis). N.J.S.A 18A:22-44.2 provides that in the event a state school aid payment
is not made until the following school budget year, districts must record the [ast
state aid payment as revenue, in the current budget year. The statute provides
legal authority for school districts to recognize this revenue in the current budget
year.

For intergovernmental transactions, GASB Statement No. 33 requires that
recognition (revenue, expenditures, asset, liability) should be in symmetry, i.e. if
one government recognizes an asset, the other government recognizes a liability.

Since the State is recording the last state aid payment in the subsequent fiscal
year, the school district cannot recognize the last two state aid payments on the
GAAP financial statements until the year the State records the payable. Due to
the timing difference of recording the last state aid payment, the fund balance
deficits in the General and Special Revenue Funds do not alone indicate that the
District is facing financial difficulties. Pursuant to P.L. 2003, ¢.97, any negative
unreserved, undesignated general fund balance that is reported as a direct result
from the delay in the payment of state aid until the following fiscal year, is not
considered in violation of New Jersey statute and regulation nor in need of
corrective action.
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NOTE 14: CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS — BUDGETARY BASIS

Calculation of Excess Surplus In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A7F-7, as
amended by P.L. 2007, ¢73 (81701), the Restricted Fund Balance - Excess
Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive
Educational Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey
school districts are required to reserve General Fund fund balance at the fiscal
year end of June 30 if the District did not appropriate a required minimum amount
as budgeted fund balance in the subsequent year's budget.

General Fund Expenditures:

Fiscal Year Ended, June 30, 2020 $107,904,641.73
Less:
Reimb. TPAF Social Security Contributions $3,208,008.99
Reimb. TPAF Pension Contributions 11,759,739.00
Capital Leases 1,163,903.01
16,131,651.00
Adjusted General Fund Expenditures $91,772,990.73
Excess Surplus Percentage 2.00%

$1,835,459.81
Increased by:

Extraordinary Aid {(unbudgeted) 263,562.00
Maximum Unassigned

General Fund Balance $2,095,021.81
Actual Unassigned

General Fund Balance 3,660,211.89
Excess Surplus $1,561,150.08

Recapitulation of Excess Surplus, June 30, 2020:
Restricted for Excess Surplus - Designated for

Subsequent Year's Expenditure $1,174,076.00
Restricted for Excess Surplus 1,561,190.08
$2,735,266.08

Based on the preceding calculation, as of June 30, 2020, $1,561,190.08 is
reported as Restricted Fund Balance Excess Surplus and is required to be
appropriated for property tax relief in the 2021-22 budget. $1,174,076.00 is
reported as Restricted Fund Balance Excess Surplus Desighated for Subsequent
Year's Expenditure and is required to be appropriated for property tax relief in
the 2020-21 budget.
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NOTE 16:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

The following interfund balances remained on the balance sheet at June 30,
2020:

Interfund Balance

Fund Receivable Payable
General Fund $190,438.12
Special Revenue Fund $71,650.00
Enterprise Fund 116,446.13
Internal Service Fund 3,668.89
Fiduciary Fund 1,326.90

$191,765.02 $191,765.02

All balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that short-term loans
were disbursed and payments between funds were received.

CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Sayreville Borough Board of
Education in prior years for the accumulation of funds for use as capitai outlay
expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is
maintained in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund
annual budget.

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in
the district’s approved Long Range Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon submission of
the LRFP to the Department of Education, a district may increase the balance in
the capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget
certified for taxes or by transfer by Board resolution at year end (June 1 fo June
30) of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line item appropriations, or
both. A district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express
approval of the voters has been obtained by either a separate proposal at budget
time or by a special question at one of the four special election dates authorized
by N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.1(g), the balance in the
account cannot at any time exceed the local support costs of uncompleted capital
projects in its approved LRFP.
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NOTE 17:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020
CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT {CONTINUED)

The activity of the capital reserve for the June 30, 2020 fiscal year is as follows:

Balance, June 30, 2019 (Budgetary Basis) $ 2,769,216.94
Interest Earnings 18,802.51
Deposits:
Board Resolution dated 06/16/20 $  3,368,458.68
Unexpended Appropriations 44,410.87
3,412,869.55
$  6,200,889.00
Withdrawals:
Budget 6830,000.00
Board Resolution dated 07/01/19 158,450.00
Board Resolution dated 07/17/19 480,375.00
Board Resolution dated 12/17/19 39,920.00
Board Resolution dated 02/18/20 362,813.00
Board Resolution dated 04/08/20 5,222.00
1,676,780.00
Balance, June 30, 2020 (Budgetary Basis) $ 4,524 109.00

MAINTENANCE RESERVE ACCOUNT

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7G-13, a Maintenance reserve account was
established by the District. The Maintenance reserve account is maintained in
the general fund.

A district board of education or board of school estimate, as appropriate, may
increase the balance in the maintenance reserve account by appropriating funds
in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes.

A district board of education or board of school estimate, as appropriate, may by
resolution withdraw such funds from the maintenance reserve account and
appropriate into the required maintenance account lines at budget time or any
time during the year for use on required maintenance activities for a school
facility as reported in the comprehensive maintenance plan pursuant to N.J.A.C.
BA:26A-4.

The district board of education shall ensure that the maintenance reserve
account balance does not, at any time, exceed four percent of the replacement
cost of the school district's school facilities for the current year. If the account
exceeds this maximum amount at June 30, the district board of education shall
reserve and designate such excess in the subsequent year’'s budget.
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Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

MAINTENANCE RESERVE ACCOUNT (CONTINUED)

At June 30, 2020, the balance of the Maintenance Reserve Account was
$980,690.72 and is within the statutory limitations.

The activity of the maintenance reserve for the June 30, 2020 fiscal year is as
follows:

Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 1,156,954.65
Interest Earnings 12,377.08
Deposits:
Unexpended Appropriations 329.99
$ 1,169,661.72
Withdrawals:
Board Resolution dated 07/17/19 188,971.00
Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 980,690.72

EMERGENCY RESERVE ACCOUNT

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-41¢c(1), an emergency reserve account was
established by the District by Board Resolution dated June 26, 2018. The
emergency reserve account is maintained in the general fund.

The funds in the reserve shall be used to finance unanticipated general fund
current expense costs required for T&E. For the purpose of the emergency
reserve account “unanticipated” shall mean reasonably unforeseeable and shall
not include additional costs caused by poor planning or error.

The account balance is not to exceed $250,000 or one percent of the district's
general fund budget up to a maximum of $1,000,000 whichever is greater.
Withdrawals require approval by the Commissioner.

At June 30, 2020, the balance of the Emergency Reserve Account was
$259,443.00 and is within the statutory limitations.

83



NOTE 18:

NOTE 19:

NOTE 20:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020
EMERGENCY RESERVE ACCOUNT (CONTINUED)

The activity of the emergency reserve for the June 30, 2020 fiscal year is as
follows:

Balance, June 30, 2019 $ 503,716.65
Interest Earnings , 3,243.93
Deposits:
Board Resolution dated 06/16/20 2,482.42
$ 509,443.00
Withdrawals:
Budget 250,000.00
Balance, June 30, 2020 $ 259,443.00
INVENTORY

Inventory in the Food Service Fund at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Food and Supplies $81,522.94

The value of Federal donated commodities as reflected on Schedule A (required
by the Single Audit Act Amendment of 1996) is the difference between market
value and cost of the commodities at the date of purchase and has been included
as an item of non-operating revenue in the financial statements.

TAX ABATEMENTS

As defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), a tax
abatement is an agreement between a government and an individual or entity in
which the government promises to forgo tax revenues and the individual or entity
promises to subsequently take a specific action that contributes to economic
development or otherwise benefits the government or its citizens. School districts
are not authorized by New Jersey statute to enter into tax abatement
agreements. However, the county or municipality in which the school district is
situated may have entered into tax abatement agreements, and that potential
must be disclosed in these financial statements. If the county or municipality
entered into tax abatement agreements, those agreements will not directly affect
the school district's local tax revenue because N.J.S.A. 54:4-75 and N.J.S.A.
54:4-76 require that amounts so forgiven must effectively be recouped from other
taxpayers and remitted to the school district.
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NOTE 21:

Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2020

TAX ABATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The District has identified several agreements that have been entered into by
Sayreville Borough that require disclosure under this statement. The gross dollar
amount, on an accrual basis, by which the District’s property tax revenues were
potentially reduced during the reporting period as a result of tax abatement
agreements totaled $11,159,749.96. It is important to note that the District Tax
Levy is guaranteed to be paid in full by the municipalities and that the District
collected its full tax levy for FY2020.

The property owner under the terms of these agreements are required to pay the
municipalities an annual service charge in lieu of taxes. In certain cases, a
portion of this fee is remitted to the school district. As of the date of the audit the
amount due to the District has not been finalized.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Board of Education has evaluated subsequent events occurring after the
financial statement date through January 29, 2021 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. Based upon this evaluation, the District
has determined that the following subseguent events needed to be disclosed:

Subsequent to the date of these Financial Statements the COVID-19 Corona
Virus has continued to spread across the State of New Jersey and the Nation as
a whole. The impact of this virus on the District's operations in Fiscal Year 2021
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time but may affect revenues.

Issuance of Debt
The District issued $8,140,000 of School Energy Savings Obligation Refunding

Bonds, Series 2020. The bonds are dated December 17, 2020 with a finai
maturity date of August 1, 2040 with a variable interest rate.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES

87




21082061 5§18

LL'ZPES0L'LOLS

00'¢S5'PS5288

00'Z65 S5 CBS

90°8LL'9L 90'£08°061 00'680'vEL 00g80'yLL
oF'SELPE Sl Yo
09'Z09°21 09°489'921 00°580°7LL 0Dge0'¥LL

66'902'122'51

66 l8l'tag'eh

00'S.Lp' 1998

00'SiV'L99°8E

SnUsAd) [BJ0L

wesbold DLOYM
JUBLUBSINGUIR PIEOIPSYY
[SEOHNS |Bi8pad

$80IN0S 2jels - 0L

{parebipng-ucy) SUCNQUILDD ANINSAS [2100S Jvdl PasINguIsy
{paieBpng-uoy) SUORNALIOY JUSWeMaY 180d SV d 1 Jeuaq-uQ
(parabpng-ucu) sourinsul Ayigestq WISL-5U0T 3vdL HEUSq-LO
(pajebipng-uou) UoISUad Jvd ) HEUsq-LO
(pajeBpnq-uou) solensy) AIOINQUINOD-UON d¥d L JBYSq-t0O
Pl B1EIS B0
piv Aunseg
piy uohezienbz
piv uojeonpd (eradg (eauofsien
piy Aeuipioeax3
piy uonerodsued | reauobaien

SIUN0S 3G

SSOUN0S [800-el0 )

$BNUSASY SNOBUR|[SOSHA PRINASSIUN
anasay eden uo pauies jSaseu;
BALSSY SOUBUSJUIEHY UO PaUIEa 1SIajU|
saRsey faushiaws uo pausea JSauBlY|
sapehoy puE suay
Sy PBY10 woy Sa8) Uojepodsues |
2Bl aU UM ST BLI0 Wolj uoging,
SEnPIAIPUL oL uonIng
Ans| xey [eao

1$80IN0S [BI07]

SANNIAIM

66800 802 € 66'300'802°C

ao'L1Z'o8l's 00'L1Z'08L'e

00'20E'L 00 L01'L

009l L2Y'8 009 1TY'e

00'SHE'061 Q0'5PE'05 1L

(oo cog's) 00°26£'5C 00°000'6E 00'000'sE
00438 L8Y L a0'LLe'Ley's 00°LLE'Ler L
00°LY6'006°8) 00'1¥6'006'31 00°L¥6'006'aL
00'2T'EYE'S 00'22Z8'sPE's 00°228'erE's

00'295'€92 O0'Z9S'CLE £0°000'059 00°000°089
DO'GES'682'T 00'G68'682'2 00588682’

(CEROERAZY LIS 1E9'E9 00266 8.4 €9 00°ce6'844'co

@Eeiri'is) 8L 108'L0E 00'EHB 268 G0°EP6'2SE

15202/ LS'Z08'3L 00°00% 00°00L

80°1L2'21 80742821 00'00L 00001

CEEFC'E £6'EPE'S

ZFEVOEL Zreva'sel 00°000'09 00°000'09

(D009’ 00'ore's 0000004 00"000'0L

(0000005 1) 00°000'051 00°0C0'0s 1

(ov'v00'0s$) 00'000'08 00°000'08
00'6¥8'SSL'E0% 00'608'55Lc08 00'6p8's5L'cOS

F7avaOAYANT} TVNLOV EoaidWNE  SINSWONIWY ONY F9ang

A8VHOAYS SHIJISNVYL 139QNS TYNIORO
ADNVIHYA
T#IZans

wb=Ou LIGIHX3

88



08’829 L9l LS QC 0SB BLY 423 90'655°CY9'8ES p6oE6 vELS) 00'96b'3.8'82%
60'862'D.E 0y’ 98Z'ere'Z BYPEG'9LLE (15'p98'9) 00'8688'624'T
00°5/¥ 00’58 00098 00'G8¢ 00'SlY
01'¥5£'05 ZOGPSLEL z/'668'18t (a2 851'22) 00'85E°0L2
2L148'4 12 23'00L6L1LL PRLIS LEE"L ¥BGGL'ELE 00'9L¥'89Z' |

Z6'LZL'g6Y Z6°LZ1'86y {go0L8'L) C0'ZE6'66F
£y L8p'0T 15'606'04 00°£6€'LE 0o'zZet 00°522°4€
66762022 Z.°080'046 14°980'£6G (6Z'cLL'001) 00°008' 269
58'Es SYELSLL 0% LB§'LL 0E'SSh 00Z¥L 4L
PO r0L L) 96568 161 00°095'60Z RN 00°000'9% L
FOP0L L) 9606182 00's58'c¥ 0o'spL) 00°000'9%

00°502'e91L 00'602'E91 00°60L'ES 00°000'061
19929'¢L. 06'/S8'6E6 ¥C L5'vOr'Si L6 (ev'zea’16z) 00°260°200'6Z
19'8FL 28 £27150'6508 PS002'LEL'S (8’50080 1) 00'80Z'SYE 8
PL'88¥' 201 082254110 ¥6066'612'9 {80°1L6E'P0Z) 00'Z8E'PER'D
v Lie'sTy 29'LPL'082'6 60°€10'£99'6 60 ¥EE'GL 00'6/9'/99'6
SZ'9EL'pOLS CLLZS'008'LS 00°095'0/9't8 00'0£8% 00'0£8'699'1
FI8VHOAY NI ICANGE I390NE WNid  FINDSWONIWY ONY 139driE

A8YHOAYd SYIASNYYL 139008 TYNIDIHO
SONYIEYA
02026 INNT Q30N3 av3A VIS4 SHL 904
TYNLEDY GNV L3D0NE - 3UNY 1vd GNNd NI
SIONVHE OGNV TN LONIEXT SANNIATE 40 SINFWTLVLS JATVUVAR
ERECEREDR]
IOEESId TO0H
S EEINS

Wb LIBIHX3

ucnInasy| - sweibold eniiey g0l
ueHINASL) paIng:sipun - swelibod senbay 120

s13[q0 BYO
SHOOQIXE Y,
s9)ddnis |esauan
(521195 ODG-D0FISEDINIDS PASEUIINA JAUID
SOAIBG IBDIUYDT | PISEYDING
$3DIAIRG {BUOIBINRT-[BUOISSSI0I PESBYIING
UCHINASUL $0) SBUBIRS BUIG
wapdnsul painquisipun - sweibod seinbay

UOIINIISUE BN - swRiBold JemnbBay 1oL

SBOIASS |BUCHEINDS [EU0ISSSIOIT PAsEYSING
SIBUOES; JO SPUBIES
uopannsy) swoH - sweificld Jgnbay

gI8U0RA} JO SAUEIES (B0,

ZL-5 sapelg
g-9 sapass
§-| SapRIDY
uapebsepury
'S184oES)} JO SBLRIES
‘uolanisy - sweiboud Jenbey
“HENIIX3 LNFHHND

S3YNLIONTSXT

89



9E VIS LLIS vSTZL'91201S 06'662 066 018 Z£'99L'65% 95 166 085°0LS
(VLG 6 8.'860'855 $2'819' /86 {6/ ZrE'28E) (0’656 556
05 18T 95'9/8'6¢ 90’38l '8z 90°'889°0Z 000057,
18'58P'T 7.'¢B8'62Z BY'6LE'ZEL {LE'9LL'vR) 00'980°LLE
00°0ZL'Y 08°828'208 05'8¥0'20¢ (ogvie'vze) 00'¢ot' 189
€2 280 600 08'e%0'S2E £0°92.'958 £0ZEE POE 0C PEE FEY
g6y £9°459'CC 00°204°¢2 00°L02°S) 0G'00G 2

LOEYE Y LOEYE' (68'508'86) 00'6vZ'59
08'ZE0'EES Sl 'epy 162 Z0'940'1E8 ZOLEY L0V alig=ri-Rorad
¥5 00Z 091 ¥6'0/0'856 2 8F'1L2'9LL'8 8v'58g'8zZ 00'989'680'9
vLo0r' L ¥R’ 166'G 8570021 (24'566'2) 00'000'02
09'158'09 89'8E0'85% 8t 06¥ 909 (25'006'81) Q0 2BE'LZS
ozzre'es ZZPEF' POV L ZV9LLTEY L Ty LBY'0S 0682’21 L
78867 95 £6/04°690L Ge20Z'201'L 2183678 858882101
l2eESEL 19219'8 Y6 11122 (ro'sog"t) 85'7/9eC
£5'96L'9 09'28ZT'05Z 61'8.9'982 B11ZF'GS 00'482'181
T0'155'9¢8 0Z'908'908 2T L8E'eY8 ZZ'809°08 00'¥SLZ48
0Ev/O'LL 6 108" LEE 6L 6LV SPE (Lz'ges 62) 00 ¥02'CLE
PLBPR'L 9zzye'e 00'15% 1L 00s) 00005 L1
95°180'L £2'8£9'Z9 BLBLLES (L2'p22'¥E) 00 ¥¥6'L6
00'rrL'ES 00°125'502¢ 00'$02'992% 00°$05'vS 00°09.'€92%
[EXELRTSCEN TonLIov TEF9aNdTvNId SINIWONIWY GNY 35an8

fAEYHOAYS SYFISNYYL LIDANY WNIDIHO
ADNVIEYA
SIONVHD ONV SIUTLIGNIdX3 SaNNIATY 40 SINTWTIVIS FALYIVANGTD
SR ENER]
I3UISIA T0CHIE HONOYOE ITIATHAYS
EREER]

Wb 0u H18IHX T

uUONBINRS 1e10ads 210 ]

BLN- INJ-SBNIGESID POLISaLY 1BI0L
saddng |eJaudcy
UORONISUI JO) SBLRIES JBUID
slayses) jo saUees

Wl INJ-SSHNIGESIP 100D

awn- wed-sages|p jooYasald 1810,
so1ddns |elousn
UONSAUISUL 10| SBURIES JBYIO
Slayora) JO SAULRS

‘B Hed-sanIIgesIP |00y0Saly

131U9D BUUNOSALLIGO) B2INCSSY (8]0
salddns 1218199
UOPDNIISUI KO SSUELRS BUIO
siaydEs) JO SaUEeS

:13jUB0 BDUNOSBIULO0DS 30IN0SDY

“SBIAESH] S|y 12)0.),
saxddns jeIeusD
uoINASL Jo) S3LERIeS a0
siayoes) JO saNges
‘SOIGESI SImINN

SBNGESI] (BIGABYSY [BIO )L
sasddng [21aussy
UQIANIISU; JO) SOLBIES JaUIO
SJBYoRa] JO SILRIES

qesiq |eioineysg

UOLRINDA |B0adS

80



LYOLDNASUI - SBINYPUSEE DANGUISIOUN (B0

SRR BEIS-UONINY

ajers yum paddenpuey auy) o) SI0oYos aieaud 0 uoning

sjooyas Aep (euoiBal pue 4SSO C uoin,

|e1zods-211S U} UILIM S,Y3T 59410 O uein L

seinBas-alels aul ulglm S,Y3T 49U10 O} voRIng
HONANISU]

sainjpuadxs PANQUISIPUN

UORANASYI - (8101

suonepdo/sweibolg BonBg ANuUirLoD) [R10L
salees
suoiesadoysweISold a5IMeS Anwwo)

swe2ib0id |BUORONHSUI JBYI0 jE101

SOBAILIE PRI0sUOdS |0DYIS [BIOL
$308[q0 Jaui0
s|euaiew pue saiddng
{S8u8S 005-00¢) S801AI8S PasEYNG
sauees

SANSBYYIE pasosuods [00Y0S

$SINARIE JBINDILIND0NS PBIOSLOS |00YIS 210
sj08l00 Bmo
s|eualely puy sa|ddng
(sauag QOS-QOE) $921ADS POSEYIING
ssyReS

ISSHIAIIDE JBINZLINIGS PRIOSUODS |00USS

uoieanps enduyg eel
SIBYDED) JO SAuBRS
uoneanpa |enfug

IBIPSWaYSINS H58q (2101
$19U288} JO SaLRES
|BIpBWRYEINS aseg

£EELLE0'ES £EELL i80'ES £8/12/1v8 00'956'6L4'2%
060008 000006 00°000'6
6SLS6'PIOE 65 1L6'PLOE 6'9E9'95 1 00°S1LE'858'L
$9'004'125 v 08126 Py 198212 00'£68'€0E
Cr R RT> vy #0C'L1E P 015’8 On'vaL LEE
99'951 ¥t 89951 vLL (ve 262'20 0G'¥56'9LZ
12986 ¢l es 92 S0V €06 G LYLEEnEier {11'gee’za} FERCEERA T
£L6/8° IZ02L'E 00'600's 00°000°S
CLBI8T IZ0ZLE 0’0008 000005
GE'Z55'80L aL'ogL'rEL’L L5'289'ZET L 1G'P56'GL 00'gzl'elz’L
06'L¥0'sY 19°'78E 738 15'92F 286 15 P55 0L 00'2L8'LZ6
FFATIA) 24 9Pe'EL 0001961 00°039'G1
8.°G6¥' £.852'521 15 PSE'0EL (6 5by) 00°008'051
0408922 DE'ESL'96 00'vBL'eZL 00'v6L'8Z1
02’0892 08'210'089 00'899'299 00'000°'4L 00°'899'159
Sr0LS'09 SG'GYr L 6EC 00°'9GZ'008 00°00%'S 00'988'¥62
YE'EBO'RL 9G'00¢ 61 20°00v L 00'00% 00'000'Z8
LL'Z28'6E 69°£20°03 00°009'6Y 00'009'sP
05°20L'g 05468'C 00°060'6 00°000'G 00000y
0g'2wt 05'CL8'202 an'esz'ene 00°962'808
00'vESS 00 #8068 0D'BER' 8¢ 00°0:9°8L 00'8ZZ BAE
00'vET 2 0G'¥09'06E 00'8E8°26¢ 00'019'g1 00'922'8.E
£8'956'C01 £0'868'Lr.L L 00’556 058 b 00'2.9'85 QOEBEEEL L
I6°950'E01L% £0'868°LF2°18 00'656°059" 13 00'Z19'65% 00C8C ¢6L 1S
(ERECEAVENEY THI0Y I VN3  SINIWONIIAY ONY 3Haang
/318YH0AYS SHIISNYYL LISang TYNIDIHO
FONYIHYA
0202 0 INNT OFONT 9v3IA a5l 3HL 8903
VALY ONV 1390N8 - IONVIvaE ANNd NI
SADNVYHD GNY STaNLIAONTdXT S3nN3ATdd 30 SINSREIVIE TATIYavdanNDed
R ERED]
12141513 T00HDS HON0Y0d FTIATHAYS
ZYEERS

Wb 0 LIFIHXE

91



S vy Ors L0°289°6v0'L8 ' 180'669 1§ (95929 /8% 00'80L°€EL LS
yv S8c 95 3rC 00'SES 0G'SE5
90°L19'0 9€°169'0 rrR9ZEL {95°Ler'e) 00°064'91L
00'96¥'Z 00'96¥'Z 00'96b'C
PEOFLL 90'€S6'9L 0000484 0000484
00 LOL'L L 00°668'CE 00°000'st G0'000'SY
00'¥2Ze'T 00°000'L 00 vPEE'YL (cosee'ss) 00'£65'60L
6v'825 LG LEF 291 00'020'E9l 00°002'L 00028191
05°0r8'ee 05 L68'V6E" | 00'888'9:8'L (00'92) 00'v9g'8LE' L
SO9EY 69 €z li6¢22z ) 28'ESE 262 | Zisol'a) 00Zor'B6Z |
98861 8t 80°EPG /6E SELPLSLY A 00'000°G9F
BLLET'LS FLpLE'S2S £6°419'048 £6'BYL'EY 00°Z9¢'€E8
9.°600'Gt 08'592'8h¥'C 95 L/8COF'E 95°006S 001266572
98'8Z1t 98'8ZL'E 98'8Z1L 00'060°E
£L288' L £6'92Z'BLE 99'80L'CE8 (bt L08'28e) 00'806'598
£9°822 ipEla'ez's $0'9E9'229's PO'ELG'OE 00'€90'LBS'L
¥ LPS PG Z8'56£'249 98'6/8°1E8 (#O'PEs S) 0515y 788
86°06% | 880ZL'2E 98°189'cE {re'292) 05'626'2E
SEEPYLL Go'cLo'eh 00'8Li'ss 00°¢12'2L 00'606'EY
LZ'80G' Lyl 6.'981°L09 00'260°SkL {00006 249) 00'£65'09L
09°SPe'Z 000081 09'6¥8'61 06 G¥R bl 00°000'S
09°Cre'ZS 09'5¥E'Z {0t ¥59'2) 00°000'S%
00°008°£1$ 00'006'£L18 60'005'218
ETHYI0ORYINT LY [39GNAY YN SINIFWGNIWY NV 350Ny
ANBYHOAYS SYIAISNYHL L3D0NA IYNIDREO
ADNVIEYA
G20z 0% INMT 30N av3A Tv¥o%1d JH1 804
WN1OY ANV L300NE - 92NV 1vd ONNZ NI
ETINVHD GNY SI8ITLIONTdXT SINNIATY 20 SLNIWALVIS JNIvavariD
ONA4 TYEINTD
CENEETS

wb=0u LIDIMXZE

12|nBal - sjuspnys - $asIAI8s Joddns Jayjo [e1e L

s1algo 12u0
sieusEp pue senddng
(S90S 005 00%) SAIAIRG pasEYIIng JaYID
SOOINDS YOF), PUB "J0I4 PISELOING JBUID
$801UBS [BUONBINDT - [BUBISSSIOIH PAsSeydIng
saugRS B0
SIUBISISSE [BOLBID PUR IBLIBIBINSS JO Saueles
yers [euoissajoid 90 Jo sapeles

.einda) - sJUBprYs - saoIMas koddns JBUIO

SBOIAISS BAIXT -SIUSPNIS -58018s Hoddns 1aylo 1210,

SBOIAIRG |SLIOHESNPT - [BUCISSRI0I PESBUIINY
saueRy
SEOINDG BAX -siuBpnlg -sedines poddns Jsul)

S8D)AISS PRIBIAI SJUAPMS - S821AI9S Hoddns Jaylo BloE

s|eu@iew pue sa)ddng
SIVINBS [BUOHEINPT - [BUOISSBI0Ld PASEYIING
seueleg

1SBOIAISS DAlRIR) JUBPAIS « $301A198 Hoddns BYIO

S30IMJBS YJ|EY 1230,

sleugjEW pue sa|ddng
SEOIAI9S FEIULDS) Pue {BUCISS0NK pBseyDINg
sauBes

‘S90S YlleeH

NIOAA 1BI00S PUB S2UBPRLBIY [BJO ),
$IMIBS FEDILLDS ] PUR |BUOISSDI0I PESEYIIN

SIQIELIPICOTY JO0UDS 7 AUNILICT) JO $BUR|ES
“RICAA [BID0S PUE S0UBPUSNY

92



80'GE9 GFS ZZOE0'SOLS 92'¢9¢'L 123 (zigiveg) 06180 vLES
0’65804 09'6LE's 00°5€0'9) {cogorzr 000058
£LEPL'IT 19°962'PE 00'000'Z9 00'000°29
60469 G6'ZYe'S 00°000'L 00°000'S 00000

(00 000's} 00'000°G
00°626°2 8Z'980'2Y 9Z'499'6% T AL 00'Z19'6Y
820 Z4806'0L 00'696'6L 00'696'0L
89'120'62 16'C97'809 99'685 /89 SUEPE L1 00'269'699
0y'G60'C OS'VOE L 0o'o0E’s (00°05+'Y) 0005L°L
Z8EL0'L Z.'G8r'62 v 655'8E (8+'0¥5'2) 0000168
£E 466G 6L°00L'22 Z1'862'8E Z1'REe'e 00°009'pZ
PLGPE'YR 9B'2L0'658 00'9iP'6L9 00°9.L'LZ 00°ZPZ 869
96 ¥Ee' L/ 8t /2T P96 Py ZoR'LP0') (95°592'2) 06'8Z1 t+0'L
12088 £18vL'Z6 00°000'c6 00°C00E6
(B R-r A 6%'9ZY'89 0£°'8.9'69 0£°€P0°'L 00'S£9'89
00°006'62 0000L'0Z 00°000'0% 0e'Go0 08
8'ZEY'GH 9Z166'eRL L p81'628 (98'80¢'¢) 00'EBY2ES
PEGSEBLL GO LEL'GED'L 00'E6Y PSLL (00's6C 7P} 00'62L86L4'L

00°66/ 0056/ 00°98.
LO'80S'8L AR AN KA 66°189'GH 66'182'0 00°00F'6S
000062 0T8LL'18 0Z'5.9'SP {ogvey'LL) 00°001'28
95 08b'p 66'9L6'79 $5E0P'68 ErvzL'zg) 00828 Ll
£7'Z5F'89 L8206°228 08'+ge'981 082’ L 00°ZL0'881
88°200'02% BG'FLG'06E"LS 9v'ZBG'9LELS ovaze'ss 00'v56'048' LS
ETEYHORYANT TYALOY TISarE™wN  STINGWORNINYONY T5and
/A1EVHOAYS SHAISNYYHL 139019 TYNIDIHO
ADNVYIHYA
1OV AONY L300Nd - JoNY 18 ONIid N
SIONVHD OGNV ST LONTAXS SINNIATY 0 SINIWALVLS IALYHYIAG
NI TYEANGS
LITHISIT TO0HDS HOMOYOE I TIASEAYS
EENEETS

wb0u LIGIHXZ

5801AEs Bului) JerS 1BusiDNISUI [2j0L

sjeuae pue ssiddng
(005-06¥) s30IBS PaseUInd JBUI0
SHTIAIBG (BUYTEL PUE [BUOISSSIOLd PASBUING BUYIO
SBOAISG [BLUORBONDY - [BUDISE3ICId PRSELDIN
HEIS [BUOISS3014 JOUI) (O SsuejeS
uonINKASYY Jo s:osinsadng Jo ssuees
'Sa0)Aeg Buties | Jeis euonangsu|

AJBIq)| {OOYIS/SSONIBS BIDBLL [ELONBINDS [8)0),

$108[q0 1810
s|eusiew pue sanddng
SEOINDG [BDIUYIS} PUE |BUOISSIJOI4 PIsSBUIIN
s8uRES
JAl2Ig)| [DOYIS/SADIAISE BIPSW [BUCHEINPT

'S30IAJS UCHANASUI JO Juawaacidw) R0y,

SEINIS [BUONEINPT -§01d PISEYSING
SIUBISISSE |EDII[0 PUE [2LEIBI08S JO SBUEIES
LEIS IBUISSRI0I JAUI0 JO SRLEES
LONONASL JO $I0SIUBGNS 10 SoLBRS
'$2OIABS UOHIMISUI JO JLUDIUSA0IdLY

wea ApS PlIYS - SIBPNIS - S80j]A3S poddns JBo (810

$109[40 1BU0
sleusiey pue saddng
(52183 005-00F) S90S PASEYDING JBYID
SATINBSG Y02) PUE “JOid PISBYING JIBHO
SIUBISISSE |2DUD)D PUE [BUBISOS JO SOBES
HES wmco_mmm&oha IBUI0 JO SBLBIES

‘sliea) Apnys PHUS - SUBPNS - SB0IABS poddns Jaglo

93



L8'058'ess BE'CEZ'GLES 02'r8.'895% 02'622°20t% 00'600'0088 $BOIAIBS (AU B0,

Z6LGE'L 80886 00°00Z° 4L 00’001 00001t $8INYpUadxs SNOALBISSIA
8B'EL 0ZZri'sh 20°961'sy 80'952'L2 00°006'8Z sluawea:by aseudind 8597 UG 153551
82 96€ ZLE0LL 00°00%'2 00°008'L 00000’ s|euajeW pue selddng
00TL9'5 00'82i'e Q0008'LE 00°008'LE {53UBS 00S-00Y) $20¥UDs paseydind BSIN
L0'9ve'sE 85'828'FLL 00°649'061 (o0sze} 00°008" L5 SOOIBS HEIULDS ] PASEYDING
05'¥8.'2 05 0Lt 00628’y 00525 00°000'y SBOIAIBS (BUDISSBJ0Id pIseYDING
vE'vRLL vebRL'L P ¥R L HEIS PaaN/RRIBLILIR Y, O] juBLuied UROBA PESIUN
ZZO8Y'L 96'959'82L glErl'egs 81'vEZ'8L 00'606° 269 SaLees
SPIINDG [EAUID
POV EEE] £0'8L4°901'8 IEBLO'SKE'E LOLLLL 04 4p8'222 UCHEASIUILPE j004IS $301M8S Joddns |ejeL
oz Leg Ll 69 LFi ¥ 56°220'65 S62CE ¢ 00°002'9% S158[q0 JBUNG
00'ELB'ZL O L¥LZO oFeLe'sl 029818 0L92r'.9 s|eusiep pug sanddng
GYE8P'8T L9060 PZL 0S'¥L5'TS3 o2 988'22) 00 LLP'SLL (00S-00p) SR0IAIBS PISEYDING JBUID
00°9.9'F 00TOL'E 009882 no'geER'L 000009 SIS |EDUYIE | PUB JEUOISSSI0I PASBYDING
SLBIGYE S4'8L0'PE GL8L0PE OIS PRIBW/DELILLIB] O} JUSLIARY UDNBOBA DBSNUSY
BYLLG'EL P Era'LoL 15291514 (B0 20¥'8) 00'0LS' V2L SIURISISSR |EIUDI0 PUR JEHIRIBINZE JO SaleleS
LE'OLY L9 GLBLBEEL'T o0'see'LZ'E 90'659'S o081 siediound Jssessiediouid Jo sauees
‘UCHEASHIILLIPE J00YSS Sa0IAI8s poddng
LG'652'¥E L0'684'902°L 85865'LbL'L (65°26922) 19528941 uonesjuiUpe esaub seowuas poddns (ejo)
0185508 0/'655DE 0/'65¢ 0G'00Z'0¢ $39) pue sanp dwysisquisu 3049
41'908 $6'288'L EL'¥69'8 (28'508'€) 00°'008°Z1L saInIpuadXe SNOJLE||BOSIN
(00 000'21) 00°000°2L spawsbpar
SL19Y'L GL199'L (sz'ges) 00005 sanddns Bunssty/Buiuiey asnoy-ul 308
8965’2 U VGG (Le°5¥6°2) 00'008'S salddns [218u8D
64667 #5080 0LY £E'085'0LY : COEPE'8Y 00'4ELTE s201088 pesayand Jauwi0
65'90L'ELE 6e'ouL'elLe 65009'8 00' 98608 auoydal@)/SuCHEIIUNWILICT
oG 1L GOE5L'EL {56°9vs) 00°005'ZL SA0IAIRG |BIULOS | PESBUMNG
00°000'EL G PLLET TG rLL'EY 25'v9L'6E 00°066'9 S30IASS [BUOISSAL0IE PASEYING SBUIC
8016841 LR ] Z0°9¥E'9L GR'E98'ZE L128E'ES saoineg BunesuBug/emoanuary
00096'82 00'095'82 00'095'82 $394 1pnY
98°10.'78% Z0°Z9¥'LOL 89'€9L '¥01 (z10c8'61) 00°000'%ZL saouues |ebay
ZE'ERL'0LLE 26'C8L'0148 (80°er9'8L1LE) 00'22¥'620% satleeg
UoneNsrILpe [Bisusd ssainas poddng
FTHVHOAVANA] TLOV 1F50ng YN STNIRGNINY ONY 135ang
/218YH0AV SYIISNVHL 13D0Nd TYNIDIEO
IONVRIYA

FNEREEEREDR]

LO1d1810 100HIS HONOHO FTIIAIHAYS

ig 133HS
W0 LIFIHX3

94



SpunQio Jo daaydn pue aued el

ssyddns [2leusg)
SBVINDS FDUBLBIIER pue seday 'Buuesy
sauees

spunoig) Jo dasudn @ asen

ed jo juretu pue uonesado 180 [ 1oL

(Ayouosia) ABleug
(seg |emeN) ABroug
salddns [zisuan
RIS
sanes Apadosd paseyound JauO
UsWaaIBy asByoINd 8seaT UBt) IO Buiping pue pue Jo [elusy
801195 JUjeWw pue nedss ‘Buuesd
$ROIASE [EDHILDS} pue jeucissajoud paseyaing
YRIS PRINON/PAIBUILIBY O} JUBLARH UONEIRA DAsSNL)}
SIPLY |BUOJIONISU-UGN $0 Salz|es
sauees
ped 40 el pue uopelado Jswo

SaNRe ] [00UDS 10; SOUBLSILEI PaINba (&0 L

sjoelgo a0
salddns [eJauan
13epn Bupiug Jo Buiss) pesn
$901A18S BOUBUAUIBY pue Jieday ‘Bulues|d
JRIS PAILSY/PRIBUILLS [ O} JUSWARY LIDNEDR A PaSNU
sauees
S| 1C0YSS 10) 2oUBUSIUEN PaINDEY

ABOIOUYSB | UONBUIOIL SAHBISILILLPY [RIOL

$103[q0 1210
sjeLse pue sacdng
(S9U2% QOG “00f ) SRIINSS PISEUDING JBUID
SADINBS [BIUYDDL PISeUDing
S80S |BUOISSSJ0Id PRsELDINg
s3leEeg
ABOjOUYDR | LONBWLIOIU; DANBISILULLRY

76'99Y /618 LE'ZEL'G56S R OCEAYE) £7'Z8E'E81% 00'722'625%
G1 25992 S0TPS'6 00°002'9E 00°002°9¢
£E°208'4ZL ZZ'081'29% G5'289'68% $5'Z8L'Z81 00008 0%
b L0C'E YT YLP'SE 89 1ZL'68 89'666 00'TTL'E8
eBL0 2T £2°082'618'S G5 'BSB OV0'Y (sroor'ze) 00928807
L6'8E6'6E Z2CBELLD 61285 /69 (Le'gse'y) 00'686'19¢
Le' 05T S 0T L58'08Z L8 L06'LPE 12'959'y 00452 2168
££Z24°0L L9LE8ELL 00°000°0E1L 00°000'081L
00'520'9L8 a0'szZo'eLe {oooiz'sL} 00'GEZ'GEE
2£'604'9€ 1E°604'9¢ {egcy0'L) 00'¢52'2€
29°969' LY L9909'Ly 19959 Ly
SeBLL'E aLigp'e 00'002°0% 00°00Z'01
1€£'660'C 89°00t'6Z 00°005'Fe 00°005'vE
6922001 08'2/0'01L 09°Z.C'C)
0L'E2T'6L oF'ZLL'GBL 06'6££'002 0S§'¥LL 00'129'661
§1'6L9'108 9Z'ser'o9l'T 1PQLL'B92'E (65'999'F9) 00°224'2EC'T
B0ZILCEY PLVYSE IR L €T 9E5 E0B'L (£2'62881) 96'598°126'L
0g'L5¢ 0L'8¥5'EL 00°C08ZL 00°009'S Q0°00Z'4
A £E0¥2'e8 L1890° L4 (Lg's66's) 85°190'68L
00°000'8 00°000'% £0°000'8
¥Z'Z61'962 $1°'982'08L REBLE'OKO'L (00°00%'6) STRLGZS0'L
or'etn’e 0y'8E0'T 0¥'GE0'Z
LLeis'ys 25°ErL'ETe 89'959'959 {(zeege'zt) 00°620'659
15°985'91Z 69'ZRE'ZLE L 0Z'696'82S' L 07'8CL'62 D0'098'66+' L
0G'006'L n0'6LS 00°SLFT 00'5LF'E
85 '698'PC LZ'GLE L) 08 ¥Z¥'09L 09vEYLL 00'p00'sS )L
Y80 oL'LLG'es 00'Z16'88 0G'Z16'88
£ECBr'e8 £V 181'69€ 05 0RT'BEY 04'68Z'6EY
ZTOELP'Z8 8Y'806'94L 05'TZEBST 05'Z2E'652
£L'628'L18 L9'P2L ¥658 Q¥'re5'2I88 or'yB9'LLS 000487558
EEYE0AVAING WNLDVY i VNI SINFNONIAY OGNV 135008
31GVHOAYS SYIISNYYL L3Dang IVNIDIEO
BONVIMYA
SIONYHD ONV STUNLKINGdX3 SaNNIAIY 40 SININIIVIS SAIIVEYINGD
S REREEENER]
EEXEE[NS

Wb 0n HSIHXE

95



BWBUSE SDA0KILY JBUIQ - SIBUaY DILBOCIY [BIOL

SO voljeuodsuei ], - SBUSY SaA0IdWS BUID
SULGHUN ANNdsS - sYjauaq sakoldws BYi0
SULICHIUL) SPUNO:T) » Souaq 8aA0|dwss Jayi0

SULIOJIUM IBIPOISNY) - SYRUAC 3RA0IdWD JBUID
SO WAOINI0IS e - SIaU3q $8A0I0WS 120
‘sHy2uag paleolly

SADMIBS UONENOdSUR)} JUBPMS (8jog

£108(0 B0
saxddng uoneyodsuel |
senddng [esauas
(0B5-0gGIuONBHOdSURI] - S0IAISS PRSBYDND SNOSUR|IS0SIY
$YS.LO 9 §093 -(sluapn)g P (dg) "AIRS WRAUOY
SYSLO B $993 - (Stuapns senbau) $901A188 PaIRIU0D
sjusuweabBy WIor -(Suspms pa KdS) WeS 1vBAL0D
SIOpUBA, - (3PS P dS) "AlBS PEAU0D
SJOPUBA-(|GOUDS 3 SLLIOLY MG LBY) JALI0) $20IASS DOIDBIUOD
JORUBA [D0YOS PUE SLUOY USDMIBY - SSDIAI3S pajoeNucD
YOS 0URYD - SIWAG NS Ul Piy - A4ES 10BU0D
4OS QNYJUON-SIWAG B3I Ul PIY - 'AJSS "1OBALOD
SBENE J00USS ~ SUBWABY BsBYING Bse87
£85Ng |00YDS - Siuawhed |ejusy
$a01AI98 POLRUIIUIRY pue siedey 'Buues)d
SBOUUAS (EDIUYS) puR (eLoissajcid paseyoing
Wweiboid uonepodsue:] ¥S10 8 D83 -984 Wswabeuely
1POYIS HANG-UON - {H0OUIS % BLIoY
usamiag} uonepodsues) dnd 10y saees
{jooyas @ swoy uaamiaq
uByl 1By uonepodsur) [idnd Jo) seueles
p3 |Bwedg-(|coyds pug awoy
UsamMaQq) uonepcdsuas iond o) sauees
JesnBau-(;00yds pue swoy
uasamiaq) ucnepodsues idnd Joj) saueies
SBPIY |RUOIINISUI-UCN 30 $SuEeS
S3GIES LONBPOdSURY JUSPNIG

$201A185 JWed 10 DIURUBSILIEL PUE UORkRISdC (810 ),

Alunoss @104

solddng [eIsus
{D0G-DOE) $POIMBS [EDIUYIBL, '8 JBUOISSIOId PasBUdINg
sauRies

Aunses

PrELY6LE SELO9PLE 6.080'vES (1z6lr0Le) 00'008 v
¥5'39 ST 0BG 61169 {1z 8ee's) 000002

0086 00616 (00'1L80'%) 00°000'S
58'9ZY GLELB 00°00F' ¢ 00°00¥'L
yO'692'GL 96086'6 00'082'5Z 0005252
LOBPO'E 66°002'C 00'0$8'S 00'068's8
prGLE L0 P YLLBLE'S 20°06¥'528'S Lo P82 624 /0°951'969'63
G966 SE0vE P 00°0%S 0o0'0vS ¥
SLLYR'BS OLPEL LS oy 891G (gsziz'ez) 00'058'641
LLELY £2Z8L'L 00008t 00°009'L

0086228 00'862'2¢ 00°840'¢ 00°0Z¢' 22

Ty LLP IS br ALY 56 vrI0T'5L8 00°042°28%
18189 00ZLL'ZE 18'66L'SY (£1266'29) 00'Z62°EL1

00°00L' 2L 00°00L'LL 00°00L'L)
D0'seR's 08'€08'656 08'8E1'29% (0Z ¢p9'68L) 00984124
090 oP'Z96'8 00'€98'8 (00°£8C'L9) 00'080'04
92 458'051 ¥/ S6E'065' L VR TAP AT 00°050'€2 O0'E0T'PTL' s
P9080'2 $6'225'Z¢ 65'€59've 65 E59'FE

09'218'ELL 09°LL8'ELL (ov'Zgl 901} 00'000'022

S1'8E0'282 GL'8EC'THT 51L'G9L'GlL 00'€29'69C
100 00'6Ts LO'5ZS (66 ¥26'6) 00'005'0L
12°689't $8°LE0°0F zoLze'ey G5'6L) 20'802'er
8L0L6'E Lg'gel'es 00'eaL' L€ 00'E60'LL 00°€20'02
£5°90L'6 LE'EER'SE 06°000'GY 00'000'0L 00°000'se

YOZ1L'v6 YOELLYE POLLLYE

FLLEE'PL PLLEE' YL (98'808'51) 00°060'06
ZY'SES YL S5'¥9E'65S 1B'B62'ELE 18°1%6° L) 0D'2$6'$68
$¥'1Z8'9L £0'268'852 8¥'SLLGEL (28'610'1L9) 00'681°218
£8'80L4E 8% /92112 TeLLETYE AW AN AT 00'0¥L'ELT
I8'Z10'206 SE'ELOPES L ZLZ6Q' LYY 89'686' /51 r0'e5L'682'8
¥SHRZ 06 £41°807'B99'L 122698/ LT £9'842SE 80'6EE E5L L
slzest 197 130°6E L 95 vre IEL 95 b .65 00005 £2
S50EL 5P S8°0ZE'E58 Ot L5¥'Z06 (8o'svs'vd) 80'56L'LL6
yZ'LZ6'988 LE'SL0'0048 C1'966'8E/8 G E5e'0vs 00" t++9'869%
FTaVHOAVING] TWNIOV E90NETWNE  SINIGNONINY ONY 1350n4

FEREL O RNE SHISSNYHL 1390N8 IVNIDIHO
JINYIEYA
SIONVYHD GNY'SIUNLICNTINT SIONIATY JO SINIWNALYLS JALLYHVANDD
RRERCEELE ]
&# 13348

W00 LIgIHX3

96



wawdinb3 g0
SwieiBios g 1BUOIONASU; JBUID PUR PRICSU0G-ooyds
Z1-6 sapein-swelboly Bay
g-9 sapeJs-sweiboly Gay
g1 sapeiD-sweibold Sau
lgnBay - sasng j0ousg
[etpoisn?) « "pusdxa ysipun
Sweay APNIS PIYY - Sa01A18¢ poddng - saINpURdXE paIngquIsIpun
Juswdinby
AYILNO TYAIEYD

t1 ONNJ ASNILXT INSYYND - STHNLANTIXE TWLOL
BAISESY DOUBLBIUIBIN VO paule] 1salalu)
SaInppUSLXT PANgLISIPUN 110}

{parabpng-uou} SUOHNAIIUOD AUNDES [BIDOS JY'd ] PESINGUAIBY
(pa188pNng-ucu) SUORNQIALOD JUSLIBINSY 150d 4vdl JIBysgq-uQ
{ps1abpngeucy) soueinsuy Aigesiq wiv)-BuoT Jvdl Jeusa-uQ
(parabpng-uou) ucisuad Jvdl JIeusq-uQ

(pa1efipng-ucu) avuRINSU] AJOINGUILOD-UCN 4V d L JBYaq-uQ

$80IA98 [euossad |ex0)
sjyaiag sah0dwl - slysuay pRled0|euN 8101

HEIS PR:a/PaIRLILLB ) O JUSWARY OIS pastun
swauayg safojdwy Jayio
SHIBLBSINGLUISY utiint
syjsuag yiesH
UONESUBdEOD) SIONJOM
uonesuadoy Juswholdweun
JeinBay - SUCHRGUILOD WADSINGWIBY BYID
JeinBas - SUONNGLIUOD JuBWBINE JSUID
SUONNQLILOD AINJSS 81908

s)ysuag askojdwy ~ sjysusg psieaojieun

AR 12'884'62S S0'0PY 0FS L195L'FLS 8¢ £8Z'92%
AT 9/°8¥5 94 0000022 a0°000'¢2
PLLELT PLLZLE {gz'eiz'sl) 00°000'22
00°05%' v 00’05 ¥ 00°05%'v
00002 00 oSy 00°059'S 00'08$'S
B0'2E9 50289 60'269
#6202 r820L #8204
2Z'E8Z't 8Z'ERZ'Y 8T €8TV
(€1 '6EY'200'6) EPevi8PL S0l CEE0E 2Pl ¥6 y2'SZL 66 90'9BL'EkO B
00001 00’001 00°00%
(v€6oPe02 L 1) ZL'EYE'58.2'29 £9 44812018 SEasyLEL 27615 0P8R0S
(66°800'802°€) 65'800'802'¢
(o0'11Z'081L'E) co'LLZ'08L'E
(o0r201'2) 0040t
(ooaLv' 1ey's} 00’9l IEr'e
(0o 5Pe'051) 00'S¥B'051L
0L1£9'6L6 rl'2SZ CRE'GL PR'E88'86L 9} (91'588'229) 00'BLLLLLGL
0L 1E9'6L6 ¥l Z5¢ ¢BC Gl ¥8'£05 861 1 (94568 245) 00'642'112°81
LE L8 0kt ZL'ELL'ELL SH0E6'ZTE (15'890°28) 00°000'GLE
90198y T6'BEL'0LE 00°000'6.2 00'000'6LZ
£1'106 Yrarax i ad) 00°000°SPL 00'000'SH1
ZorLL'SEL 96'129'856'L1 0Z'98.'c60'2) e rie'LLg) 00°19L'LL0'EL
00°408'685 00°L0B'68% {00'69Z'08) 00'220'908
{00'000'08) 0p'000'0s
S6'FEQ'QL gLEEL'EL 1915068 LOBYE'TE 00'80Z' L9
L0'0E8'E6S 96°5EP'€90"L L8122 (£0'91L2'8¢€) 00'8BL'SEL L
L5°08E'650°LS 4$°088'690' LS 25°08%'28 00'0$8'980°LS
HTEVEOAYING WOLOY IF0anE YN SINSWONIAY ONY NELGE]
AMEYHOAYS SUIISNYYL 1390ndg IYNIDIRO
FONYIEYA
DZGE GF ANl QJONT Y44 1v0SI3 IHL 5O
WNHLOY ONV LIDANG - JONV Ve ANlig NI
SEONVHD GNV STHALIONTAX3 SanNNIASY 40 SINFWF VIS IATLVEYANOD
S ERERERER]
GI# 13318

W3 LIGIHXE

97



EERIEHYAH

96'0£E'G9LS

(giv1eLr098)

sz vz’ Le)

(51 e682E8'vS)

{10'6.4'208'8) 24 LPS'P06 L0 22'988'108'86 Gr'viz’y GL'Ghy 28816

00'595'825 00585625 00192764 00 0T ¥5F
08'185'c9 0Z'gly'sg 00'000'05 1 00'000°08 1
00'160'eS 00'606'9% 00'000'0Z 1 00°000°0Z 1
06'L80°ES 00°606'09 00°000°0% 1 00000921
00°160°¢§ 0D'606'99 00000 021 00°0006°021
0806V 0% 0260564 00°000°0¢ 00'000°CE
08 06¥ 0% 026066} 00'000'0¢ 0000008
08'06+ 0% 0260661 00°000'08 00°000°08
ZEZA0'0%2 OL°016'6E5'E ZYZB6 6LL'E €L LE66E80°L B0'650°0vL'2
Gzo'gos'colL’L) LO'E06'89L"L
(58°L21°0Z8) S8'L.10Z8
(68'zeg'0P) 66'2¢2°0F
(£1'96%'€09) 21°865'609
00°001 00°00L 007003
60'vEZ'6BE' L 92T OPET lezer'as'e 95°084'20'L LB LIQ'ELLE

00'£ES 962 00'€E5'362 00'CES 562
L8OPL'BLE"L 06'565'9.8'L L8°TPI'GBL'E 95°100'LZ6 LEOPLYLZ'E
ZZ /80'088 87'680'¢918 00°L21'S¥ZS 006447018 00'86€' 0¥ 1S
TT8vVE0AVANN TYNLOY T YNid  SINIAONIAY ONY i3sang

A19vHOAY S SHIAISNYHL 1390N8 TYNIDIHO
FONYIIVA
6202708 INNT G0N dvaA TvoSId 3H1 503
TYNLDOV ONY E390110 - 30N 1ve GNN3 Ni
SIDNVHD ONV SSUNLIGNTdXT SaNNIATY 0 SINIAZLVYIS JAILVEYJAOD
ONNF v aNgD
(NENEETNES

W40 LIgIHXI

sa:nppuadxs (Japun) 18A0
sanuaaal 0 (Kauanyap) sseox3

SIUNLIANIXS TYLOL
SI0042S JAUEYD O} SPUNY JO IBSUBIYL

SIO0HIS WIDAS WLOL
STO0OMIS TWIDAdS HIHL0 TWi0L
VORONASU SIO0UDS JBLID [BI0L

sIayoea] Jo sauejes
UORINASL] - S|O0USS 110808 JBLI0
TO0HIS HIWNNS TVi0L
UOROMASU - [0OUDS JBLWILUNS [BIOL

siaydea] JO sauRes

UCHDNIISUL « [00U3S JaWIWING
SI00HIS Tv123dS

AVTILNO TWlidy) Tv.LOL
(pe1eBpng-ucy:) Sosea| |EICED JapUn paImnboe slasse B30 ),

usnepodsuesy
VULURIUIEN
Afojouuns |, ol BAIBASIVILLPY
sanjIpuadxe PANGISIpPUN
(pa1eBpng-uou) sases) (elded Japun pasnboe sjessy

anasay jeldes oy usodacy 1saiy|

SIVASBS "JSUCD pUR "SINBIE $Ee] (2101
Buipuny vaS U0 821AI9S 109(¢] JO) JIBWSEESSY
SHNALDS LUCHONGSUOD

saoineg Buzeauwbugyeniesiyy
'SSOMAISS UCHONASUCS pue ucHisinboe sanioey

98



A————————

PLEOE'516'68

6svILE6LE)

£L'9CL'B0LTES

18°120'660°C

TLL8E' LT
00°062'6EY

00°EPr'65T
00601 FES'P
£2'069°086
800611081
00°'820'v21'18

{dvvD) spuny ejuawiuieacs Jad soueleg pung
SISEq JYYD U0 paziubooal Jou JUalWAed piy 1e)S 1887
{dyvs) SlusWSe)s SpuUnd [RRIBUILLIAAE) O} LOHE|IDU08Y

paubisseun

saoueIgUInSUS

samnypuadxg ssea ) wanbesgng 1o} pejeublsaq
:paubissy

anresey fousblawl

anlasey [eldeD

BAISSEY SvUBUSIUE

1eaA aung - sniding sseax3

saunypuadxy s eak juanbasgng Joy pajeubiisag- snidmg ssaoxy
paplsey
ruopenidesay

0F uny ‘saouBeq pundg

| Ainp ‘sedue|eqg pund

saoinog Bupueuld Jey() pur sainypuadxy J8AQ S80INOS
BUUBUIL IOUIC PUB SBNUSADY JO (Aousioyap) 5603

(sasn) saounos Bupueuy eyl feloL
(potabipng-uou) sases)| euden
SPUN JOUI0 WO Jajsues)

(sesn) s80Inos Sudueuy BY10

69'9vS'9.e" L8 £E'BEL'B0L 218 ¥9'685'Z88'6S sLer'viz'Le) 12O LPS oS
9Ev06'PR0'LL 9 P06 PROLE 9EV06'¥B0' L1
69'8¥5'0.8°L JBE6E oL {ZLvieess'a) 5 1ev'vie 19) Glcée ey
£6'¢85'025'L £5°E0G'E28'L 00°000'662 00°000°562
LO'S06'ESL LS 10E06°€9L L
Z6'089'poe 250£9'659% 00°000°662%$ 00°000°56Z$
EFTEVHOAVANT VLoV 1950nd WNiH  SINFAONZNY ONY 350n9
/A19vH0AYS SHIAASNYAL 13DaNE IWNIDIHO
FONVIEYA
pAE-REE[<)

wb=3n L19IHX3

09



REVENUES:

State sources $

Federal sources
Other sources

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:

Salaries of teachers
Other salaries
Purchased professional services
QOther purchased services
Tuition
Supplies and materials
Textbooks

Total instruction

Suppon services:
Salaries
Salaries of Program Directors
Salaries of Other Professional Staff
Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistanis
Other Salaries
Salaries of Master Teachers
Personail services - emplioyee benefits
Purchased professional - technical services
Purchased educational services - Pre-K
Purchased educational services - Head Start

SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT "C-2"

Confracted services - Transp. (Bet. Home & School)

Other purchased services
Supplies and materials

Total support services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

{under) expenditures $

BUDGET
ORIGINAL TRANSFERS/ FINAL VARIANCE
BUDGEY AMENDMENTS BUDGET ACTUAL FINAL TO ACTUAL
174,756.00 $  2,840,420.92 3,015,175.92 2,782538.1¢ 3§ (232,637.82)
2,300,349.00 570,638.00 2,870,987.00 2,394,683.02 (476,303.98)
30,123.31 30,123.31 1,230.80 (28,892.51
2.475,104.00 3,441,182,23 5,916,286.23 5,178,451.92 (737.834.31)
435,693.00 767,9356.00 1,203,629.00 1,103,302.05 100,326.95
127,840.00 384,200.79 522,040.79 377,623.18 144,417 61
52,572.00 52,572.00 35,386.50 17,185.50
90,685.00 12,213.00 102,898.00 88,373.78 14,524.22
1,227,926.00 {19,602.00) 1,208,324.00 1,208,296.20 27.80
26,996.00 167,419.23 194,415.23 100,057.49 94,357.74
13,346.00 358.00 13,704.00 13,546.57 157.43
1,922,486.00 1,376,097.02 3,297,583.02 2,926,685.77 370.997.25
6,700.00 6,700.00 6,700.00
93,581.10 93,681.10 93,581.10
18,952.00 238,633.00 257,585.00 194,196.74 63,388.26
66,861.22 66,661.22 66,661.22
161,197.19 151,197.19 126,928.80 24,268.38
83,810.70 83,810.70 83,810.70
121,365.00 391,657.060 513,022.00 488,116.23 24,905.77
363,451.00 22,684.00 386,135.00 250,855.12 135,279.88
375,110.60 375,110.00 375,100.92 0.08
420,000.00 420,000.60 420,000.00
100,000.00 100,000.60 100,000.60
53,919.00 §3,919.00 10,0556.00 43,864.00
48,850.00 62,132.00 110,982.00 42,661.32 68,430.68
562,618.00 2,066,085.21 2,618,703.21 2,251,866.15 366,837.06
2,475,104.00 3,441,182.23 5,916,286.23 5,178,451.92 737,834.31
-0- 3 -0- -0- -0- $ -0-
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SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
BUDGET TO GAAP RECONCILIATION
NQTE TO RSI
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Note A - Explanation of difference between budgetary inflows and outflows
and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures

EXHIBIT "C-3"

SPECIAL
GENERAL REVENUE
FUND FUND

Sourcesfinflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue” from the budgetary comparison

schedule $108,069,972.69 $5,178,451.92
Difference - hudget to GAAP:
State aid payment recognized for budgetary purposes, not recognized for
GAAP statements until the subsequent year (2,793,774.59) {279,592 41)
State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in the current year,
previously recognized for budgetary purposes. 2,486,885.00

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures

and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. $107,763,083.10 $4,898,859.51

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis} "total expenditures” from the

budgetary comparison schedule, $107,004,641.73 $5,178,451.92
Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues,
expendilures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds $107,904,641.73 $5,178,451.92
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART I
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SCHEDULES RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PENSION (GASBE 68)
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PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM (PERS)

SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHQOL DISTRICT

EXHIBIT "L-4"

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART il

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Change in benefit terms:

None

Change in assumptions:
The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension

liability in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending
June 30
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

TEACHERS PENSION AND ANNUITY FUND (TPAF)

Discount
Rate
£5.28%
5.66%
5.00%
3.98%
4.90%
5.39%
5.55%

Change in benefit terms:

None

Change in assumptions:
The following assumptions were used in calculating the net pension

liability in their respective accounting periods:

Measurement
Date Ending
June 30,
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013

Discount
Rate
5.60%
4.86%
4.25%
3.22%
4.13%
4.68%
4.95%

107

Long-Term
Expected
Rate of
Return
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.65%
7.90%
7.90%
7.80%

tong-Term

Expected
Rate of
Return
7.00%
7.00%
7.00%
7.65%
7.90%
7.90%
7.90%

Actuarial
Experience
Study Period
07/01/14-06/30/18
07/01/11-06/30/14
07/01/11-06/30/14
07/01/11-06/30/14
07/01/08-06/30/11
07/01/08-08/30/11
07/01/08-06/30/11

Actuarial
Experience
Study Period
07/01/115-06/30/18
07/01/12-06/30/15
07/01/12-06/30/15
07/01/12-06/30/15
07/01/09-06/30/12
07/01/09-06/30/12
07/01/09-06/30/12



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - PART IV
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SCHEDULE RELATED TO ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING FOR PCSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN
PENSIONS {GASB 75)
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EXHIBIT "M-1"

SAYREVILLE BOROQUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE DISTRICT'S
TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

LAST THREE YEARS
Measurement Date Ended June 30,
2019 2018 2017
Total Non-Employer OPEB Liability - State's Proportionate Share
of Totat OPEB Liability Associated with the School District
Balance at 6/30 $159,743,603 $182,768,181 $196,875,089
Changes for the year:
Service cost 6,647,913 7,482 195 9,046,240
Interast 6,355,127 6,737,795 5,811,063
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected
and actual experience (23,024,851) {14,789,332)
Changes in assumptions or
other inputs 2,199,640 (18,331,378) {24,888,793)
Membership Contributions 134,241 147,629 155,881
Benefit payments - Net {4,528,640) (4,271,487) {4,233,299)
Net changes (12,216,570) (23,024 .578) (14,106.908)
Batance at 6/30 $147,627,033 $159,743,603 $182,768,181
Covered Employee Payroll 50,259,578 47,821,112 46,346 926
District's Proportionate Share of the Total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability as a percentage of the District's
Covered Employee Payroll -0- -0- -0-
State's Proportionate Share of the Total Non-Employer
OPEB Liability associated with the District as a percentage
of the District’'s Covered Employee Payroll 293.53% 334.04% 394.35%

Note: Schedule is intended to show ten year trend. Additional years will be reported as they become available.
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EXHIBIT "M-2"

SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION PART IV
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Change in benefit terms: None

Change in assumptions: The discount rate changed from 3.87% to 3.50% as of
June 30, 2019.
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
DETAIL STATEMENTS
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SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND

SCHEDULE OF PRESCHOOL EDUCATION AID

BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

EXHIBIT "E-2"

Budgeted Actual Variance

EXPENDITURES:
Instruction:

Salaries of Teachers $726,476.00 $629,649.05 $96,826.95
Other Salaries for Instruction 346,040.79 299,624.85 46,415.94

General supplies 26,151.00 26,146.51 4.49
Total instruction 1,098,667.79 955,420.41 143,247.38
Support Services:

Salaries of Program Directors 93,581.10 93,581.10

Salaries of Other Professionat Staff 82,188.00 82,188.00

Salaries of Secretarial and Clerical Assistants 66,661.22 66,661.22

Other Salaries 151,197.19 126,928.80 24,268.39

Salaries of Master Teachers 83,810.70 83,810.70

Personal Services - Employee Benefits 318,584.00 294 328.23 2425577

Purchased Educational Services - Contracted Pre-K 375,110.00 375,109.92 0.08

Purchased Educational Services - Head Start 420,000.00 420,000.00

Contr Services - Transportation (Bet. Home & School) 100,000.00 100,000.00

Supplies and Materials 10,600.00 9,735.28 264.72
Total support services 1,701,132, 21 1,652,343.25 48,788.96
Total expenditures $2,799,800.00 $2,607,763.66 $192,036.34

CALCULATION OF BUDGET AND CARRYOVER

Total 2018-20 Preschool Education Aid Allocation

Add: Actual PreK Carryover {(June 30, 2019)

Add: Budgeted Transfer From General Fund

Totat Preschool Education Funds Avaitable for 2019-20 Budget

Less: 2019-20 Budgeted Prek (including

prior year budgeted carryover}

Available & Unbudgeted Preschool Education Aid Funds as of June 30, 2020

Add: June 30, 2020 Unexpended Preschool Education Aid
2018-20 actual Carryover-Preschool Education Aid

2019-20 Preschool Education Aid Carryover
Budgeted for Preschool Programs 2020-21
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$2,799,800.00

2,799,800.00

2,799,800.00

192,036.34

$192,036.34




PROPRIETARY FUND DETAIL STATEMENTS

Proprietary funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the district's board is that the costs
of providing goods or services be financed through user charges.

FOOD SERVICES FUND: This fund provides for the operation of Food services
within the school district.
COMMUNITY SCHOOL: This fund provides for the operation of a community school
program.
INTERNAL SERVICE FUND: This fund provides for the seif-insurance of the prescription
plan.

119




SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

EXHIBIT "G-1"

FQOD SERVICE COMMUNITY SCHOOL TOTAL
ASSETS:
Current assets;
Cash and cash equivalents % 45087506 § 392,884.50 852,759.56
Accounts receivable:
State 2,056.50 2,056.50
Federal 136,598.68 136,598.68
Other 28,015.58 9,766.00 37,781.58
inventories 81,522.94 81,622.94
Total current assets ' 708,068.76 402 650.50 1,110,719.26
MNoncurrent assets:
Furniture, machinery & equipment 568,970.00 568,970.00
Less accumulated depreciation {561,255.C0) (561,255.00)
Taotal noncurrent assets 7,715.00 7.715.00
Total assels $ 715,783.76 3 402,650.50 1,118,434.26
LIABILITIES:
Current liabilities:
interfund payabie $ 116,446.13 § 116,446.13
Unearned revenue 80,255.77 80,255.77
Accounts payable 2,084.45 2,094.45
Total current liabilities 198,796.35 198,796.35
Noncurrent liabitities:
Compensated Absences 34,375.00 34,375.00
Total noncurrent liabilities 34,375.00 34,375.00
Total liabilities 233,171.35 233,171.35
NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets 7.715.00 7,715.00
Unrestricted 474,897.41 402,650.50 877,547.91
Total net position $ 482861241 § 402,650.50 885,262.91
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EXHIBIT "G-2"

SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, FEXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTMITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

FOOD SERVICE
SCHCOL NUTRITION COMMUNITY SCHOOL TOTAL
OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Daily sales - reimbursable programs 3 557,139.90 % $ 557,139.80
Daity sales - non-reimbursable programs 234,352.04 234,352.04
Special functions 2,249.72 2,249.72
Fees - individuals £9,916.00 69,916.00
Totial operating revenues 793,741.66 69,916.00 £63,657.66
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Cost of sales - reimbursable 812,053.44 812,053.44
Cost of sales - non-reimbursable 57.512.14 57.512.74
Salaries 957 676,61 53,765.52 1.011,442.13
Employee benefits 166,251.92 166,251.92
Qther purchase services 29,004 58 29,004.58
Supplies and materials 68,043.01 1,288.29 69,331.30
Miscellaneous 5,215.38 1,206.60 6,421.38
Depreciation 7,285.00 7,295.60
Total operating expenses 2,103,052.68 56,259.81 2,158,312.49
Operating income (Joss) . $ (1,309,311.02) $ 13656.19 8% (1,295,654.83)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
State sources
State schoolf lunch program 3 1212663 § $ 19,1286.63
Federal sources:
National school lunch program 757,364,51 757,364.5%
School breakfast program 193,992.11 193,992.11
Mational food distribution commodities 143,817.86 143,817.86
Total noroperating revenues 1,114,304.11 1,114,301.11
Income before contributions & transfers {195,009.91} 13,656.19 {181,353.72)
Other financing uses:
Transter of funds {295,000.00; (295,000.00)
Total other financing uses (295,000.00) (285,000.00)
Change in net position (195,608.91) (281,343.81) (476,353.72)
Total net position - beginning 677,622.32 683,994.31 1,361,616.63
Total net positicn - ending $ 482 612.41 $ 402,650.50 % 885,262.91
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SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHGOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT Of CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - ENTERPRISE FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers

Payments to employees

Payments to employee benefits
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided by {used for} operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
State sources

Federal sources

Operating subsidies and transfers to other funds

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases of capital assets

Net cash provided by (used for) capital and
retated financing activities

Met increase {decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, July 1, 2018

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30, 2020

Reconciliation of operating income (foss) to net cash
provided (used} by operating activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconciling operating income {loss) to
net cash provided by {used for) operating aclivities:
Depreciation
Federat commodities

Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in other accounds receivable
increase (decrease) in unearned revenue
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
{Increase} decrease in invenlories

Net cash provided by (used for} operating activities

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - ENTERPRISE FUND

EXHIBIT "G -3"

FQOQD SERVICE COMMUNITY SCHQOL, JOTAL

3 80546222 § (1,785.50) % 803,676.72
(957,676.61) (53,765.52) (1.011,442.13)
(49,325.48) (49,325.48)
(1.050,681.21) (6,807.29) {1.057,488.50)
{1,252.221.08) (62,358.31) (1,314,579.39)

19,356.43 19,356.43

919,600.66 819,600.66
{295,000.00} (295,000.00)

938,957.08 (295,000.00} 6543,957.09
(8,941.00} (8,941.00}
(8,941.00) {8,941.00)
{322,204.99) {367,358.31) {679,563.30}

782,080.05 750,242.81 1,532,322.86

3 459.875.06 % 39288450 § 852,750.56
5 (1.309,311.02) § 1365619 § {1,295,654.83)
7,295.00 7,285.00

143,817.86 143,817.86
(16,087.52) 519.00 {15,568.52}

43,086.36 (72,220.50) (29,134.14)

{75,235.18) {4,313.00) (79,548.19)

(45,786.57) {45,786.57)
57,089.94 {76,014.50) {18,924.56)
3 {1,252,221.08) 3 (62,358.31) % {1,314,579.39}
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ASSETS:
Current assets;
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscal agents
Accounts receivable:
Cther

Total current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES:
interfunds payable
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION:
Unrestricted

Total net position

EXHIBIT "G -4"

SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2620

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES -
PRESCRIPTION DENTAL INTERNAL
PLAN PLAN SERVICE FUND
$ 363,856.03 256,365.81 § 620,221.84
213,116.05 213,118,056
417,391.41 53,263.13 470,654.54
3 994,363 49 30962894 § 1,303,892.43
994,363.49 309,628.94 1,303,992.43
3,668.89 3,668.80
302,106.15 43,823.20 345,929 35
137,300.00 13,100.00 150,400.00
443,075.04 56,923.20 499,098.24
551,288.45 252,705.74 803,994.18
$ 581,288.45 252,705.74 % 803,994.19
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SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

EXHIBIT "G -5"

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services:
Services provided to other funds
Quarterly rebates
Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Claims

Total operating expenses

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expendilures

Other financing sources {(uses):
Canceled accounts receivabie
Transfers Infout

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in net position

Total net position - beginning

Total net position - ending

PROPRIETARY FUNDS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL
ACTIVITIES -
PRESCRIPTION DENTAL INTERNAL
PLAN PLAN SERVICE FUND

$ 2,688,135.31 § 634,534.64 3,322,669.95
380,520.90 380,520.80

3,068,656.21 634,534 64 3,703,190.85

3,211,180.81 464,651.96 3,675,832.77

3,211,180.81 464,651.96 3,675,832.77

(142,524.60) 169,882.68 27,358.08
{4,115.05) (4,115.05)
(352,545.47) (352,545.47)
(356,660.52) (356,660.52)
(499,185.12) 169,882.68 (329,302.44)

1,050,473.57 82,823.08 1,133,296.63

$ 551,288.45 $ 252,705.74 803,994.19
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SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHQOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS - INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and other funds
Cash Paymenis for Empioyee Benefits
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating subsidies and transfers o other funds

Net cash provided by noncapital financing aclivities
Net increase {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents
Balances - Beginning of Year

Balances - End of Year

Reconciliation of operaling income {loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Qperating income {loss)

Adjusiments to reconciling operating income (loss) to

net cash provided by (used for) operating aclivities:
{increase) decrease in accounts receivable
Increase {decrease) in claims payable

Total Adjustments

Net cash provided by {(used for) operating activities

EXHIBIT "G -6"

TOTAL
GOVERNMENTAL
’ ACTIMITIES -
PRESCRIPTION DENTAL INTERNAL
PLAN PLAN SERVICE FUND
$ 3,161,863.09 632,117.76 § 3,793,980.85
(3,060,346.57) (467,332.86) (3,5627,679.43)
$ 101,516.52 164,784.90 % 266,301.42
(348,876.68) (348,876.58)
{348,876.58) {348,876.58)
(247,360.06) 164,784.90 (82,575.16)
3 824,332.14 91,580.91 § 915,913.05
$ 576,972.08 25636581 § §33,337.82
$ {142,524.60) 16988268 3§ 27,368.08
93,206.88 (2,416.88) 90,790.00
150,834.24 (2,680.90) 148,153.34
24404112 {56.097.78) 238,943.34
$ 101,516.52 164,784.90 § 266,301.42
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS DETAIL STATEMENTS

Fiduciary Funds are used to account for funds received by the district for a specific purpose:
Unemployment Compensation :
Insurance Trust Fund: This expendable trust fund is used to pay

unemployment compensation claims as they arise.

Scholarship Trust Fund: This trust fund is used to account for assets held by the district for grants to students
where there are no restrictions regarding the use of principal and interest.

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the district as an agent for another party:

Student Activity Fund : This agency fund is used to account for student funds held at
the schools.
Payroll Fund: This agency fund is used to account for the payroll transactions of the

school district.
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EXHIBIT "H-2"

SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIBUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

STATE UNEMPLOYMENT
PRIVATE PURPOSE COMPENSATION
AWARD FUNDS TRUST FUND TOTAL
ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
From employees $ $ 199,190.38 3 199,190.38
From donors 10,734.00 10,734.00
Total contributions 10.734.00 199,190.38 200,924.38
investment earnings:
interest 52.99 532.62 585.61
Net investment earnings 52.99 532.62 585.61
Total additions 10,786.99 199,723.00 210,509.99
DEDUCTIONS:
Awards granted 12,782.71 12,782.71
Unemployment ciaims 128,215.77 128,215.77
Total deductions 12,782.71 128,215.77 140,998.48
Change in net position {1,995.72) 71,507.23 69,511.51
Net position beginning of year 58,866.87 125,976.88 184,943.75
Net position end of year $ 56,971.15 & 197,484,411 % 254,455.26
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EXHIBIT "H-3"

SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STUDENT ACTIVITY FUND
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

BALANCE BALANCE
JUNE 30, 2019 INCREASES DECREASES JUNE 30, 2020
Elementary Schools
Dwight D. Eisenhower $ 323641 % $ 28221 % 2,954.20
Harry S. Truman 7.407.86 975.00 6,432.86
Samsel Upper 7.370.92 4,643.02 3,558.06 8,455.88
Woodrow Wilson 861.20 4.00 20.00 845.20
18,876.39 4,647.02 4,835.27 18,688.14
Middle Schools
Sayreville Middle School 30,007 .42 86,536.33 89,299.70 27,244 .05
30,007.42 86,536.33 89,299.70 27,244 .05
High Schools:
Sayreville High School 258,827.95 547,749.43 517,938.39 288,637.99
Athletic Fund 6,619.52 63,832.00 50,732.00 19,819.52
265,447 47 611,681.43 568,671.39 308,457.51
Grand Total $ 31433128 % 702,864.78 % 662,806.36 $  354,389.70
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LLONG-TERM LIABILITIES SCHEDULES

The Long-Term schedules are used to reflect the outstanding principal balances of the long-term
liabilities of the District. This includes obligations under Serial Bonds and Capital Leases.
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STATISTICAL SECTION - UNAUDITED




SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

Contents Page

Financial Trends:

These schedules contain trend information o help the reader understand how
the district's financial performance and weli being have changed over time. J-1 10 J-4

Revenue Capacity:

These schedules contain information {0 help the reader assess the district's
most significant local revenue source, the property tax. J-5t0 J-9

Debt Capacity:
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability
of the district's current levels of outstanding debt and the district's ability to issue
additional debt in the future. J-10to J-13

Demographic and Economic Information:

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader
understand the environment within which the district's financial activities take place. J-14 to J-15

Operating Information:
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand
how the information in the district's financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20

Sources

Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial reports (CAFR) for the relevant year.
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EXHIBIT "3-7"

SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES

UNAUDITED
Sayrevilie School District Overlapping Rates
Fiscal Year Total Direct Total Direct and
Ended Obligation School Municlpality of County of Overiapping
June 30, Basic Rate {a}) Debt Service (b} Tax Rale Sayreville Library Middiesex Tax Rate
2020 $2.796 $0.156 $2.952 $1.489 $0.072 $0.852 $5.345
2019 2.755 0.150 2,805 1.443 0.069 0.816 5.233
2018 2701 0.150 2.851 1.586 0.067 0.815 5319
2017 2.564 0.160 2.724 1.350 0.067 0.816 4.957
2016 2.497 0.160 2.657 1.314 0.065 0.783 4819
2015 2.426 0.160 2.586 1.277 0.064 0.777 4.704
2014 2.383 0.160 2,543 1.228 0.063 0.770 4.604
2013 * * 2495 1.179 0.068 0.801 4.543
2012 * * 2.455 1.136 0.072 0.793 4.456
2011 * * 2.409 1.169 0.776 4.354

* - Not Available

Source: District Records and Municipal Tax Collector
{Rates are per $100 of assessed valug)

NJSA 18A:7F-5d limits the amount that the district can submit for a general fund tax levy. The levy when
added to other components of the district's net budget may not exceed the prebudget year net budget by
more than the spending growth limitation calculated as follows: the prebudget year net budget increased
by the cost of living or 2.5 percent, whichever is greater, plus any spending growth adjustments.

(a) The district's basic tax rate is calculated from the A4F form which is submitted with the budget and the
net valuation taxable

(b} Rates for debt service are based on gach year's requirements.
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Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30,

2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011

SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Taxes Levied
for the
Fiscal Year

$66,687,576.00
65,357,364.00
65,363,165.00
62,254,946.00
60,525,205.00
58,960,419.00
57,880,132.00
56,924,062.00
55,826,018.00
55,084,546.00

UNAUDITED

Collected within the Fiscal Year of the Levy (a)

Amount

$66,687,576.00
§5,357,364.00
65,363,165.00
62,254,946.00
60,525,205.00
58,960,419.00
57,880,132.00
56,924,0662.00
55,926,018.00
55,084,5646.00

Percentage
of Levy

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

Source: District records including the Certificate and Report of School Taxes (A4F form)

Note: School taxes are collected by the Municipal Tax Collector. Under New Jersey State Statute, a municipality is

EXHIBIT "J-9"

Collections in

Subseguent Years

required to remit to the school district the entire property tax balance, in is the amount voted upon or certified prior
to the end of the school year.
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Fiscal Year
Ended
June 30

2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012
2011

SAYREVILLE BORCUGH SCHCOL DISTRICT

RATIOS OF NET BONDED DEBT OUTSTANDING

UNAUDITED

General Bonded Debt Outstanding

General
Obligation
Bonds

$34,240,000.00
36,680,000.00
39,030,000.00
41,320,000.00
43,855,000.00
45,925,000.00
47,910,000.00
48,915,000.00
50,307,000.00
51,907,000.00

Deductions

Net General
Bonded Debt

QOutstanding

$34,240,000.00
36,680,000.00
39,030,000.00
41,320,000.00
43,855,000.00
45,925,000.00
47,910,000.00
49,915,000.00
50,307,000.00
51,807,000.00

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

EXHIBIT "J-11"

Value {a) of
Property Per Capita {b)
NIA N/A
1.60% 830.37
1.70% 879.59
1.81% 928.06
1.92% 989.51
2.02% 1,040.49
2.10% 1,090.03
2.19% 1,144.79
2.20% 1,162.12
2.28% 1,205.21

Note: Details regarding the district's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements.

(a) See Exhibit J-6 for propenrty tax data.

(b) Population data can be found in Exhibit J-14.
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SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES DEBT

Governmental Unit
Debt repaid with property taxes
Sayreville Borough
Other debt
Middiesex County
Subiotal, overlapping debt
Sayreville Borough School District Direct Debt

Total direct and overlapping debt

Source: Annual Debt Statements

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019
UNAUDITED

Gross Debt
Qutstandin

$49,014,549.00

639,091,028.00

Estimated
Percentage

Applicable {a)

100.00%

4.40%

EXHIBIT "3-12"

Estimated Share
of Overlapping
Debt

$48,014,549.00

28,120,005.23

77.134,554.23

34,240,000.00

(a) For debt repaid with property taxes, the percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property
values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of another governmental unit's taxabie value that is within

the district's boundaries and dividing it by each unit's total taxable value.

147



Yo le've

%EH e

%ht'6E

%BG'GT

‘sadAl IINSIP JaUI0 10} Piqesidde g PINOM Sl %, JRIH0 OSIP Z | ybnosy M B o) 85 -pZ:v8L "Y'STN A 198 1w (B)
uolexe | Jo uoisia] Aunsealy o wawledaq (Aasier MaN O BIBIG AU J0 Hoday Ienuuy BUYl W) PAUIEIGO dlam SBseq uolenien pazienby :80inog

MU 3990 Jo % e se
1w 3 o) srgeyddy
1630 18N (10 L

uibsen 1gaq sy

Wuw 0f S|qedddy
1920 18N [B10),

nwryigag

%EQ'SZ WS T %8622 %OE" 1 %EDBL WrgLL
00'69L'€Z2'0018 OO’ ISL'G89'S5LE  0020¥'Z6E'S¥Ls  OCECLIBE'EELE  Q0SH6'00L'SEls  C00ZE PEOZEl$S  0D'I£6'S0S'9SLS  /666Z'96L pvid CEERYRIT0GLS CLEZCIBYIGLS
00000 206' 1S 00'000'0LE'0S 00°000°G1E'6¥ 00°000°0LE LY DO000'SZE'SY 00 000'S8R'EY 00'CO0'0ZE LY 00°0000£0°6E 00'000°089°9¢ 00'000°0%2 ¥
00'694'069'21Z¢ OO MSE'6SZ'90ZS  0OLOV'IOC'86LE  O0E0L 16Z'Z8L8  0O'€66'SEL'6LLS  O000ZE'68Y'9LLS  OUIEE'SIHSLLS  I66BZ'OTTCRLS CEE8Y'EET'081S  CLEZEIZ6'I6LS

10 ZHe 102 PLOZ Grog gioe Iite gile (554 Ce0e

LS. LIFIHX3

0E aunp Buipuy Jea A 9814

QI LNYNN

NOLLYWHOINI NIDSYR 1930 TV 31

LORLSIAIO0RDS HON0308 ATIAIHAYS

£LCZE IR0 4618
00°CO0'0YZ PE
SLETELEE LEL

CEBLO'CEDBELPE

DO'SETEB0 PEE PLS
00188081589’y
00EYO'SLS'0LLY
00'LLE'6RE'926'YS

wiizeyy 108 1efien
nwi o} s|qeiddy 1g2Q 19N 18104

(2anjea uonezienbe abeisae ;0 (B} %p) NWIT 193G

Auadold ajgexe] jo uoten|ea pazienby afielany

L30T
8102
8102

1BB A JEPUDIRY

148



EXHIBIT "J-14"

SAYREVILLE SCHOOQL DISTRICT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

UNAUDITED
SAYREVILLE
Middlesex County
Per Capita Unemployment

Year Population {a) Personal Income (b) Personal Income (c) Rate (d}
2019 44,173 2,697 424 24500 61,065.00 3.10%
2018 44,373 2,566,336,488.00 58,172.00 3.70%
2017 44,523 2,537,293,500.00 56,526.00 4.30%
2016 44,320 2,438,205,887.00 54,971.00 4.60%
2015 44,138 2,332,208,019.00 53,955.00 5.00%
2014 43,953 2,260,338,155.00 52,471.00 6.10%
2013 43,602 2,329,861,888.00 53,435.00 7.70%
2012 43,289 2,200,673,196.00 50,969.00 8.50%
2011 43,069 2,038,837,500.00 47,349.00 8.80%
2010 43,553 1,966,901,356.00 45,786.00 9.00%

Source;

(a) Population information provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.

(b) Personal income has been estimated based upon the municipal population and per capita personal income presented.

(c} Per capita personal income by municipality estimated based upon the 2001 Census published by the US Bureau of
Economic Analysis.

{d) Unemployment data provided by the NJ Dept. of Labor and Workforce Development.
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EXHIBIT *J-20"

SAYREVILLE BOROUGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
INSURANCE SCHEDULE

UNAUDITED
COVERAGE DEDUCTIBLE
School Alliance Insurance Fund
Schoof Package Property:
Properiy-Blanket Building and Contents $500,000,000.00 Per Occurrence $2,500.00
Boiler and Machinery $100,000,000.00 Per Cccurrence $2,500.00
Cyber Liability $2,000,000.00 Per Occurrence $50,000.00
Crime and Fidelity
Blanket Dishonesty Bond $500,000.00 each loss $1,000.00
Money and securities $50,000.00 each loss $1,000.00
Comprehensive General Liabilities and Automobile
Liability Including Employees Benefit Liability $5.000,000.00  Per Occurrence/ Per Member
Environmental Impairment Liability $1,000,000.00 Per incident $10,000.00
$25,000,000.00 Fund Annual Aggregate
Foreign Trave! Liability Coverage $1,000,000.00  Per incident/Annual Aggregate
Student Accident insurance $1,000,000.00 Per accident/ 3 year benefit
School Leaders Professional Liability $5.000,000.00  Per claim/ Aggregate per member $10,000.00
$10,000,000.00 Aggregate per occurrence $5,000.00
Workers Compensation: Statutory
Workers Compensation Employer's Liability $5,000,000.00  Per Occurrence/ Aggregate

Selective Insurance Company of America

Public Officials’ Bond
Treasurer $384,000.00
Businesss Administrator $375,000.00

Source: District Records
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EXHIBIT "K-1"

SuPLEE, CLOONEY & CoMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 067090-2122

Telephone 908-789-9300 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Sayreville Borough School District
County of Middlesex

Sayreviile, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of
Sayreville Borough School District (the "District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 29, 2021.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s
control over financial reporting (internal control} as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sayreville
Borough School District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the District's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.
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SUuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might
be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

ke Loy 1o,

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

bt L )\

January 29, 2021 PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948
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EXHIBIT “K-2"

SuPLEE, CLOONEY & COMPANY

CERTIFIED PuBLiC ACCOUNTANTS
308 East Broad Street, Westfield, New Jersey 07090-2122

Telephone 908-789.9300 Fax 908-789-8535
E-mail info@scnco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO MAJOR FEDERAL
AND STATE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS AND ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE
UNIFORM GUIDANCE AND NEW JERSEY OMB CIRCULAR 15-08

Honorable President and Members
of the Board of Education
Sayreville Borough School District
County of Middiesex

Sayreville, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Sayreville Borough Schoo! District’'s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the federal OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey
OMB State Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the
Sayrevilie Borough School District’s major state programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. The
District's major federal and state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the reguirements of laws, reguiations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal and state programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Sayreville Borough
School District's major federal and state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance
requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and New Jersey OMB Circular 15-08.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have
a direct and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Sayreville Borough School District’s compliance with
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.
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We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal and state program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
Sayreville Borough School District's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal and State Program

In our opinion, the Sayreville Borough School District complied, in all material respects, with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on
each of its major federal and state programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the Sayreville Borough School Disfrict is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Sayreville
Borough School District’s internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could
have a direct and material effect on each major federal or state program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey OMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sayreville Borough School District's internal control
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance,
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the
requirements of the Uniform Guidance and State of New Jersey OMB 15-08. Accordingly, this report

is not suitable for any other purpose.
UB}IC ACCOUNTANTS =

CERTIFIED P
A L/

January 29, 2021 PUBLIC SCHOOL ACCOUNTANT NO. 948
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NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

EXHIBIT "K-5"
Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2020

GENERAL

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance include federal and state activity of the Sayrevilie Borough
School District ("the District”). The District is defined in Note 1 {o the basic
financial statements. All federal and state awards received directly from the
federal and state agencies, as well as federal awards and state financial
assistance passed through other government agencies is included on the
schedule of expenditures of federal awards and state financials assistance.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal awards and state
financial assistance are presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the
exceptions of programs recorded in the food service fund, which are presented
using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described
in Note 1 of the District's basic financial statements. The information in this
schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of 2 CFR 200

Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (“Uniform Guidance”), Audits of States, Local Governments,
and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this
schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the
basic financial statements. The District has elected not to use the 10 percent de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue
fund on a GAAP basis. Budgetary comparison statements or schedule (RSI) are
presented for the general fund and special revenue fund to demonstrate finance-
regulated legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting,
revenue is not recognized until the subsequent year or when expenditures have
been made.

The General fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified
accrual basis with the exception of the revenue recognition of the deferred state
aid payments in the current budget year, which is mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A.
18A:22-44.2. For GAAP accounting purposes, those payments are not
recognized until the subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and
recording of the state aid payments in the subsequent year. The special revenue
fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting
budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and aiso
recognizes the related revenue, whereas GAAP basis does not. The special
revenue fund aiso recognizes the deferred state aid payments in the current
budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44 2.
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EXHIBIT “K-5"
Sayreville Borough School District
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and State Financial Assistance
Year Ended June 30, 2020

NOTE 3: RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is
($306,889.59) for the general fund and ($279,592.41) for the special revenue
fund. See the notes to the required supplementary information for a reconciliation
of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general
and special revenue funds. Federal awards and state financial assistance
revenues are reported in the Board's basic financial statements on a GAAP basis

as follows:
Federal State Total

General Fund $190,803.06 $43,576,292.40 $43,767,095.46
Special Revenue Fund 2,394,683.02 2,502,845.69 4.,897,628.71
Debt Service Fund 79,436.00 79,436.00
Food Service Fund 1,095,174.48 19,126.63 1,114,301.11
3,680,660.56 46,177,800.72 49 858,461.28
GAAP Adjustment 586,482.00 586,482.00

Total Awards &
Financial Assistance $3,680,660.56 $46,764,282.72 $49,858,461.28

NOTE 4: RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts
reported in the related federal and state financial reports.

NOTE &: OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported in the Food Distribution Program represent
current year value received and current year distributions respectively. The
amount reported as TPAF pension contributions, post-retirement medical
benefits and long-term disability insurance represents the amount paid by the
state on behalf of the district for the year ended June 30, 2020. TPAF Social
Security contributions represent the amount reimbursed by the state for the
employer's share of Social Security contributions for TPAF members for the year
ended June 30, 2020.
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EXHIBIT “K-6”

Sayreville Borough School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements
(1) Type of Auditor's Report Issued: Unmodified
(2) internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

(a) Material weakness(es) identified? No

(b} Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? No

(3) Noncompliance material to the basic financial

statements noted during the audit? No
Federal Program{s)
M Internal Control Over Major Federal Programs:

(a) Material weakness(es) identified? No

(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? No

(2) Type of Auditor’'s Report issued on compliance for major federal
program(s)? Unmodified

(3) Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance? No

€))] identification of Major Federal Program(s):

Program Title CFDA
Special Education Cluster:
IDEA, Part B 84.027
IDEA, Part B, Preschool 84.173

5) Program Threshold Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $750,000.00
Type B State Program Threshold <= $750,000.00

(6) Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Uniform Guidance? Yes
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Sayreville Borough School District

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section | — Summary of Auditor’s Results {Continued)

State Program(s)

(1)

(2)

3

4

)

()

Internal Control Over Major State Programs:

EXHIBIT "K-6"

(a) Material weakness(es) identified? No
(b) Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? No
Type of Auditor's Report issued on compliance for major state
program(s)? Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in
accordance with N.J. OMB Circular 15-087 No
Identification of Major State Program(s):
Program Title Project Number
State Aid Cluster:
Equalization Aid 20-495-034-5120-078
Categorical Special Education Aid 20-495-034-5120-089
Categorica! Security Aid 20-495-034-5120-084
Preschool Education Aid 20-495-034-5120-086
Program Threshold Determination:
Type A State Program Threshold > $1,050,136.00
Type B State Program Threshold <= $1,050,136.00
Auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee under OMB Circular 15-08? Yes
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EXHIBIT "K-6"
Sayreville Borough School District
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020

Section Il — Financial Statement Audit — Reported Findings Under Government Auditing
Standards

internal Control Findings — None Reported

Compliance Findings — None Reported

Section lll — Findings and Questioned Costs Relative to Major Federal and State
Programs

Federal Programs - None Reported

State Programs — None Reported
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EXHIBIT "K-7"
Sayreville Borough School District

Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings

Not Applicable
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